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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and has followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
It currently comprises eight Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them, two are Executive
Directors, while the remaining six are Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, three are Independent
Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 93.5%. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is
responsible for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing
detailed reports on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively. In order to focus its attention on strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the Group’s finances and
long-term development, the Board has set up four committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are

given below:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been delegated with power directly from the Board to handle matters which require the Board'’s review

during the adjournment of the Board. Its responsibilities include:

- approving policies, implementing plans and management measures to effect the group-wide development strategies and

business plans approved by the Board;
- reviewing the progress on implementation of the strategies and business plans;
- recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and approval; and
- approving the Group’s policies according to the policies imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding company.

The members of Executive Committee during the year were Mr. Fang Hongguang (Chairman) and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. Both of them

were Executive Directors of the Bank.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

The members of Audit Committee during the year were Mr. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David and Ms. Sui Yang.
All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were Independent

Non-executive Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Bank in the

following areas:
- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Bank and determination of the Bank’s risk profile;
- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by the Bank;

- the review and assessment of the adequacy of the Bank’s risk management policies, system and internal control, including the

Bank’s compliance with prudential, legal and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Bank;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Bank; and
- review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions.

The members of the Risk Management Committee during the year were Mr. Li Jiuzhong (Chairman), Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr.
Chang Hsin Kang, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Chang Hsin Kang

and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including one Non-executive Director, Ms. Sui Yang, and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David. It was chaired by Mr. Lan
Hong Tsung David, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors represent 66.7%
of the Committee members. With effect from 23 May 2015, Ms. Zhu Yanlai, a Non-executive Director of the Board, resigned as the
member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sui Yang was appointed as a member of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee at 9 June 2015. Prior and subsequent to such changes, the Independent Non-executive Directors represent 66.7% of the

Committee members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:
- human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

- structure, size and composition (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,

geographical location, professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.

Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2015 included the approval, review and proposal to the

Board on the following according to the responsibilities and authorities:

- formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the
“Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Deferral Variable Remuneration Policy”; as well as the review of “Senior Management”,
“Key Personnel”, “Key Employee Group” and “Risk Control Personnel” as delineated in the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System” published by Hong Kong Monetary Authority;
- performance appraisal result of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2014;
- proposal on staff bonus for year 2014 and salary adjustment for year 2015 of the Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- key performance indicators of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2015;
- review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
- review of Directors’ Independency Policy;
- election of Directors for 2015;
- Directors’ independency report for 2014;
- self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2014;
- consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors of the Group;

- consideration of the appointment and resignation of Key Personnel.

There were two Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during 2015. The attendance rate of the three Directors was

80.0%.

10
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance

their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited and all of its subsidiaries (including the

branches and subsidiaries within and outside Hong Kong).

®  “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the

HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

* “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the group-wide

strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive and Deputy General Managers.

» “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of Treasury,

as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

® Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from

other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary.

11
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to
formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group
will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management
and different units (including business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of
financial, customer, building blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at
different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the performance management
mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards
performance of their units and fulfilment of risk management duties and compliance, etc. Not only is target accomplishment
taken into account, but the risk exposure involved during the course of work could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring

security and normal operation of the Group.

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”
of BOCHK, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the
Group. Credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk
form the framework of “The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is calculated
according to the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board of BOCHK and is subject to its discretion. This
method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s variable remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and

to maintain effective risk management through the remuneration mechanism.

12
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the
other for individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibiliies and functions of the staff with the
prerequisite that balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job
grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage

the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the
affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance

assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Group Bonus Funding Policy of BOCHK, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is
determined by the Board of BOCHK on the basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of
non-financial strategic business targets under the long-term development of the BOCHK Group. Thorough consideration is
also made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic
calculations but the Board of BOCHK can make discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing
circumstances. When the BOCHK group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance
level), no variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board of BOCHK reserves the rights to

exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of
which should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are
determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line
risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of
performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and

the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

13
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach
towards deferral. The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the higher the job grade or the

higher amount of the variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting
conditions are closely linked to the annual performance of the BOCHK Group in the next 3 years and the individual
behaviour of the staff concerned. When the BOCHK Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred
variable remuneration would be vested following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed
fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later
proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management
style pose negative impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk

management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

) Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

14
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net loss on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
on investment properties

Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

15

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

8,746,484 10,037,240
(4,026,334) (4,847,191)
4,720,150 5,190,049
1,446,527 1,332,965
(89,577) (78,239)
1,356,950 1,254,726
54,159 8,858
(6,382) (7,958)
336,421 122,530
42,408 70,808
6,503,706 6,639,013
(633,324) (904,294)
5,870,382 5,734,719
(2,632,162) (2,497,589)
3,238,220 3,237,130
121,046 129,896
19,246 (347)
3,378,512 3,366,679
(481,735) (615,180)
2,896,777 2,751,499
542,500 700,000
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2014
AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 2,896,777 2,751,499

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:

Premises:
Revaluation of premises 374,898 495,305
Deferred tax 10,657 (70,286)

385,555 425,019

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Available-for-sale securities:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale

securities 280,066 557,098
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale

securities reclassified to income

statement (256,051) (93,642)
Amortisation with respect to

available-for-sale securities transferred

to held-to-maturity securities reclassified

to income statement 1,054 1,062
Deferred tax (15,548) (95,845)
9,521 368,673

Change in fair value of hedging instruments

under net investment hedges 44,284 38,400
Currency translation difference (589,711) (288,736)
(535,906) 118,337

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (150,351) 543,356

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,746,426 3,294,855
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Other accounts and provisions
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total liabilities

17

2015 2014
T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

54,244,805 58,282,800
7,056,785 18,180,762
6,963,572 6,155,213

696,266 439,072
168,924,014 163,903,699
55,407,983 47,168,324
414,736 1,280,271
7,008,020 7,328,497
46,690 -
5,962 152,171
4,295,231 1,013,444
132,729 -
305,196,793 303,904,253

30,961,174 37,735,611

4,575,356 4,970,693
302,944 278,506
218,261,983 209,633,935
12,974,800 15,181,966
187,530 222,225
812,352 986,473
21,884 -
268,098,023 269,009,409
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

18

2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,144,517 3,144,517
33,954,253 31,750,327
37,098,770 34,894,844

305,196,793 303,904,253
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H2014E£1H1H At 1 January 2014

R Profit for the year
Hofth R Other comprehensive
income:
FREE Premises
]k R 2 Available-for-sale
securities
SFCEERT TR T, Change in fair value
H2Z N PHERAE of hedging

instruments under
net investment

hedges
Bl Currency translation
difference
EH U LEEE Total comprehensive
income
AR Transfer to share
capital
A E T B Transfer from retained
earnings
FEE (HfaE 16) Dividends

#2014 412 § 31 H At 31 December 2014

7201541 H1H At 1 January 2015

PR Profit for the year
Hofth AU Other comprehensive
income:
PR Premises
Ak B Available-for-sale
securities
SPCEERT TR Change in fair value
HZ A AL of hedging

instruments under
net investment

hedges
B Currency translation
difference
Elren | Total comprehensive
income
[R5 78 H B 2 i3 Release upon disposal
of premises
L B TR Transfer from retained
earnings
fEE (FfsE 16) Dividends

#2015 412 A 31 H At 31 December 2015

* BRiEE GRS 30 S EOHRHURK
(B  HEeE R B K T R
FIEEE AT — e 2 s
RAARK AR TR ) -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

it
Reserves
AL
HHAVE
BB HH
Reserve for
R fair value
EHfEH  changes of
N A 8 EALEHE Premises available- B A HE G gkl ARG
Share Share Capital  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory  Translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings equity
BT BIETIT BIETIT BIETIT BIETIT BIETIT BIETIT BIETIT BMETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
700,000 2,444,517 605 5,515,739 (164,888) 1,944,980 964,629 20,894,407 32,299,989
- - - - - - - 2,751,499 2,751,499
- - - 425,019 - - - - 425,019
- - - - 368,673 - - - 368,673
- - - - - - 38,400 - 38,400
- - - (3,649) 3,123 - (288,210) - (288,736)
- - - 421,370 371,796 - (249,810) 2,751,499 3,294,855
2,444,517 (2,444,517) - - - - - - -
- - - - - 228,610 - (228,610) -
- - - - - - - (700,000) _ (700,000)
3,144,517 - 605 5,937,109 206,908 2,173,590 714,819 22,717,296 34,894,844
3,144,517 - 605 5,937,109 206,908 2,173,590 714,819 22,717,296 34,894,844
- - - - - - - 2,896,777 2,896,777
- - - 385,555 - - - - 385,555
- - - - 9,521 - - - 9,521
- - - - - - 44,284 - 44,284
- - - (8,455) (2,675) - (578,581) - (589,711)
- - - 377,100 6,846 - (534,297) 2,896,777 2,746,426
- - - (459,399) - - - 459,399 -
- - - - - 82,083 - (82,083) -
- - - - - - - (542,500)  (542,500)
3,144,517 - 605 5,854,810 213,754 2,255,673 180,522 25,448,889 37,098,770

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow before taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas profits tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant

and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid

Net cash outflow from financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

20

2015 2014
BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,079,357 15,674,762
(464,589) (458,285)
(112,701) (189,366)
2,502,067 15,027,111
(74,240) (84,996)
(2,903) (821)
398,673 248
986,800 -
1,308,330 (85,569)
(542,500) (700,000)
(542,500) (700,000)
3,267,897 14,241,542

52,301,071 39,008,565

(1,746,559) (949,036)

53,822,409 52,301,071
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M TSRt
1 EEEHBOR

MR REEAGEV B #RERZE
BREETEREEIIT -

PREFAIFERAST - B E S BCRY
We— B E R A 51 Z
AR -

1.1 4EBlE®R

FEE 2 SR AT B AR T
REBEEHEI A G R Z &
A EAER (FAN
A R — 4R - B e
FEFTA 2 B A B S
AR AT AR R )
B MAFETEE (AT
By ZHLE -

REFE ISR TR S
FEGRE - M E S
BREZr ~ DI PEEEA
RaE 2 BRNEE b Rl A
(EfEPTEERM T ) IS
SPEYIMRZ B~ LA
BV IR Z LB YIS K LU
EBCE G E R BT &
Rt BERRRIIIRZ FFE
TEHEREE - UlElEEE b Fr
EHE G DUHIRH{E R A
{E B B Rl A 2 R
LR A=Ps i EIF 19/ b e
1.24 57 1.27 -

Notes to the Financial statements

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which are
carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets and
assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in Notes 1.24 and 1.27 respectively.
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

TR E BT S A 4R The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
BURA RN B E T certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
B EE - EHEIR judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
TR AAREE g3
RIS A R HET -
REM 201541 H 1 HiEE Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already mandatorily effective
BRI A I A RS i M AR R for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2015, there is no other standard or
SEE T AR TR A A IR amendment adopted by the Group in 2015. The impact of the adoption of these annual
AN A 2015 FEAREE G improvements is not material to the Group’s financial statements.

AR HAAER S ERT - £§
M FaEam R B RS
A IS A B B 2 P
BHEREE -
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEEsEcE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
() ELEMR{E 15 R 58 &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

ER AR EEEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015

2015 ARG %

Rl 52T

DT EE M 21 & The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatory for

BETh 2016 21 H 1 accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

HiE s g sany &

FHE ARG AR -

A
B/
EREACEE Currently
A/ 1857 Applicable for relevant
Standards/ NE financial years to the
Amendments Content beginning on/after  Group
EEETTEAIS 158 (KME5T) WEEAE M 2016 F1 H1H =
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
FAGHEAE 16 9% FlgselE B £ENEY 2016 F1H1H S
4158 (&1E3T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
FEETTEAIS 16 98 FAGTRERE  BEITE K 2 v BT A 2016 F1 H1H =
38 5% (4&&51)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
Depreciation and Amortisation
FHREGEHEANSE 27 98(2011) (KME3T) MM BsRENAIELE 2016 FF1 H 1 H =
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial statements 1 January 2016 Yes
EEETHEAS 28 972011 N EEN  EEEHBENSEREIHNWEENEE0E  fFE S
B RIEE 10 5% (&HEET) A
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined No
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
EE TR 28 57(2011) - HABVTE  KEEE | SFA0RGIVMNEEAYIER 20161 H1H &
e RIS 10 57 R E B s
512 5% (&E)
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016 No
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Exception
AT B SRS 9 5 ERITHE 201841 H1H s
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
ERVGHREAERE 11 9% (KEaT) Wi & s s 2 sl R 2016 FF1 H 1 H S
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1 January 2016 No
Operations

ERE S AR 14 5% EEERIERE 2016 FF1 H 1 H e
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
TR S AR 15 5% TERE P EEETBA 20181 H1H =
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
() ELEMR{E 15 R 58 &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFAREAEE have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

TAETBA SR HAER 2
7 B I i o A AT
FIgR

o EEEETAERISE 15k
(&fEaT) "R
HEME, - &Egs
A 15F9ERT S
FEHE— P a2
BRI ELE
HA ek T R HEE
FERE - B0 - BtE
TR B A ERR
I FH 17 & {08 i %5
#x o MEETEREDN
B R M 5
g © JESh - e
& lEH 2R B ] 2
ST = EE TR
Fe M ER PR Bt
EYEMBEHEEN -
ZIAEETH A SR
MBBMEILAERE
.

=

o HHRGETERE 27
#E(2011) (&Ef2ET)
BT R
fEa% ) o %IRERT
HT IR R
MR TR

= BEAT - 6H

i P& Loyl
IR o FETTHEAT
BRazesT - Ui
ARV SRR E AR
AR T RIS
B PR ST
—EAVEEHRE A
HEWEERT - %00
ERTH AR
WEIGHERTE -

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

« HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments to HKAS 1 are
designed to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. For
example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of
financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in determining where and in what
order information is presented in the financial disclosures. This amendment will
not have material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

« HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments), “Equity Method in Separate Financial statements”.
The amendments restore the option to allow an entity to apply the equity method
to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. Early application is permitted. Entities electing to
change to the equity method in its separate financial statements shall have to
apply the same accounting for each category of investments so elected and are
required to apply this change retrospectively. These amendments will not have
any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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MR (8
1. EEEHBOR (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) SRR EARRH M
EREREEEER

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

o TR HRELEREE
99t TeRIA, -
B P s e e HE R
95t TEMIE, W
ARMSERR T Bt
HERIZ B GHERE
T 2 HIEIE - A
% s EAIEE 9
e IR A GRS
AR T HIERET
TS ZERES 9 9RAY
PR mE A
Y 73 B R Et B R
A B H BATiE
(1 " ERAIES ) RRE
TR - B e B
HRE BT
SHIE - BRI
HEAEAIZE 9 SRAYE
ST EFR AL T

() PR

R

BRI R
Ry AT Horpz — st
SR (DLABEERRL
RIEREETR > ()0
O PEE bR AEA
SR FREE
(5% 7 FL YR THR A
8 RIEIES > FTE
IS ST A
fltg=HElER) - 2(3)
DIAHEZ LAt AR
HIFREETR - Bl
BN Y BT
WFHiERE > ZRAIER]
YATERRIFEE - 7% 70
BECANEEE S
Fl T EAVZERS AL -
PARz TREY &4
SRR -

« HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

completes the International Accounting Standards Board's comprehensive
response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS 9
under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a
single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment model and a tighter linkage of
risk management to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are
highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2)
measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (all fair
value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will be
recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments.
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
() ELEMR{E 15 R 58 &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFEREAEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

() 7 kst (HE)

EREE (8D

WA ER A B —IH
St LR TR

& HoAR A
BLE > KR
BREERT A% A E
DISE A 4B 0
HEY » DUEEER
GHI SRR EANR
FLHERRIA S
MBS - WRAA TR
BLEAEBELE
RIS USCH S 43R <82
TR R A E

Mm#% LEASFEE
QEL e IR
B LRGN PE
S bat AHA 2L
HETRE R - T
A EAM S TR
S PEE L ARR

st

ety TH—HLL
SPHEFREETE
BRIFEZEARIER T
AT e At ET
SPE - FFAERS
PR s TR
LA HEER BRT A
Bt - HNTE
HArA R A
AR TERR I
ATl -
REH R EHERATA
SPE R SRS TR
PrEAt 2 g - T
H & B R
I PEWER B TRIR
AT eI R R A -
E UK EHIREFITE
I BRI R
ITERE ©

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a
debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the
asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
characteristics represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt
instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with limited
circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value. Equity
instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair value through profit
or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.

PR RhtEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
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1. FEETEER ()

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 HEEE (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) ELAEHEME R 1
SR PR EE

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET (&)

() 7kt (HE)

SR

ERN IR S (s
CE A S =N G P
Feat BEA LR T
LRI 39 5%
SR RARZE
HIE

RIEH B A EE R
bx > 2RI R <2
BRI
AR A EET - L
RS AR HE SR
[FROB e TR ES G
PEEEE) > BRI
HoAh S YA - W
SOES TR SRR TR 65
G RCEE NIV E S
N e IR & EL
AR A Erat 8
B > RIEEIR P 8
BRI E R
N - HEEASERE
IO > RAEWIAA
T 2 {81 1) & {5 15 T
SE - HARREWREMTT
fiti = FIRI HAth 2 A
Wz HY AR HAR R AT
H o HERER
N {E AT R 2 B
o IR MR
BEELLAPEETERY
HEARGEE RS
M ARV R N E -
IREREEREH
EEREBRE TS
F R A I 1R A
s -

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification and
measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically carried
forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included
in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the income
statement. The determination of whether there will be a mismatch will need to be
made at initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to the income statement but may be transferred within equity. This
removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk
of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss.
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MR (8
1. EEEHBOR (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) SRR EARRH M
EREREEEER

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

() 7 kst (HE)

ERE s (8D

D HIRHOS T
A EEERE 39
SRR LG
s T B8 RS
AYRTAESB T AT
LVATAHR RIVE
3K e

(i) gt

RGNS
Kb iEwe a5 I8
SRRV T (5 18
RIFEBA - AR
EREELIER S
FERIIEHER SRl T R
I FEIZE 12 [HHAY
FEEHEE - B4
il T BAE T IBTERR 1%
RS b e 1
PIEEN > HIRE 2R
IRy L B 35 <2 it LAY
ki K S U]
B - ZAERITRM
i AR R A R 1R
SHERERTA - M
AP EE bR AHAM
WG IF & S E
B LA - B30K
i B R & FIRY
B -

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities
to account for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when financial
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit
losses on a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments and financial
guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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1. EEEHBOR (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) SRR EARRH M
EREREEEER

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

(ii)) #pEs

ARt RINE
1% B ot B L
EHIEEE SR
B R RE S %
FIRBRE N - AR
FUE R B A R
SPERYEOR - (T
ERESE N
i B AR - S
e TRy AT
R P 2 IR T A &
[ V&7 =)
WL H Ay -
MR FFREEI B HRR
BHE A R RS E
HIFYEEER - R EEH
T A B AR AY

B 988
o

I R 5
9 BEALEFIEATIRANE
AR R —OF
it - BAEEEERRY
HR 5 I W] B T 1
HIERE - AEEEE K
MR TH H 4B
AT AR S i o
RIS o SRAVZE: »
TE LAEat# R 7% 152
Al - IHEHHEEES
FHHER TR - E
LAY R AR L
TERREITH T K&
HYILAE - FHRIHER
RN - B RA
e 2 B e B R
LfER -

(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the accounting
treatments with risk management activities and enable entities to better reflect
these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management strategies may be
eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with more
relevant information about risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on
the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted. Only the
part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in isolation. The
Group has already formed a groupwide project team to assess the impact of
HKFRS 9, formulate the work plan and implement the standard. Significant works
has been done on analysing our financial instruments, building models and
designing new workflows. Due to the complication of the project, no quantitative
information of the potential effect is concluded yet.
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
() ELEMR{E 15 R 58 &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFEREAEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FEHEFIRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

. TR TE A
5 15 BRI
ERIA, -
S R
15 5 i B — 18
AT A
& FE RS
SHHAT - R
B LB T
SRR RS
BRI =
HERY - GREER
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R R
Hi B T
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« HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a
single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core principle that
revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to be entitled when
control of promised good or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to
the recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the sale of some
non-financial assets such as properties or equipment that are not an output of
ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements
about revenue from customer contracts. The new standard will replace the
separate models for goods, services and construction contracts stipulated in
different standards under the current HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the standard and the timing of its
application.

30



%) NCB #:f % k4t

MR (8) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 ERUEXE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
b) BEBEBUBHEE (b) Improvements to HKFRSs

Rl

F o= B B “Improvements to HKFRSs" contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which the
B WE ST EE HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
RN =Y EI S accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
SEAEFENER - E terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The
HEFES (BT i amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
et E AR 2016. The adoption of these improvements does not have a material impact on the
SHEENEET % Group’s financial statements.
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(c) THE (ARG (c) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
T (DEEE) 59 The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies
TR E REE ) FrET Ordinance came into effect for the first time during the current financial year. The
Y SR A A B B A R main impact to the Group’s financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure
B RAER - Bz 51 of certain information in the Group’s financial statements.
TEEAR LS
G BRERNETE
RHHYF R 85 -

1.2 FEMBEHE 1.2 Consolidation
STEEVMBHRREEANE The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
KFrAERBAFREZE 12 of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of
the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

1.4 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available for sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting
period;
income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

1.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

1.6 Hedge accounting

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for
under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

1.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.8 FISUWABSIH,  REBE K

1.8 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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(continued)

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

1.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available for sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as
held for trading.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so
designated by the Management:
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Financial assets (continued)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases; or

applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to
the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part
of interest income.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.9 Financial assets (continued)
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(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without an
active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has
both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group's
control, non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in
statutory or regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated as
such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised in equity
should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest income which includes
the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset using the
effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities is dealt with in
Note 1.4.

1.10 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
liabilities, deposits and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Financial liabilities (continued)

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Deposit, and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period using
the effective interest method.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.11 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.12 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables (except
investment securities without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities
are recognised when money is received from customers, other liabilities are recognised
when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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= (&)
Ul Bl s 5 TR Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks, placements from
B2 2 a1 22 5 B F- P VS banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash

ZHIEI R TR ER
SRAT IR SR T B oA <5
RS Rl R bR L0
F1D - EHEA e
émﬂ T E N B AT T
B ]I%ﬁﬂffb%mﬁx jZLJ\

mﬂ rJifJIEIE%J jﬂﬂ

‘”7"’55”%@%%&6@
TR T ZEER &
B N EE A TR Rl
T 2 B ME MR AT R 2
FESRAT B Hofth < Rt A A Y
bR KR (A ) - 7Y
52 1 [ g T T W 2
Rz EMEERTE
BRI EE A R et
B (ol (H 2 22 B A DL
CE SRS IN T L I
oy BIHERE R B M AR
B -

LI3 APEETE

REENEFEG SR
PLASPE ST B R A% A
Y~ BB R R
e PEREEGERE
WIS T £ S
5 2 A H 2 5k
™ HSSEEETHFR
S ERERBR AR
{EH -

PR EERE AP EE
RS By 5 2 BLE A
L i {2 48 ) 28 Y 15
PR HIRY R E R

-

IR E 2 N TEEE
RB BTS2 MEENZ
B AT E 4 N i = e
KOF s R BT 5
52 B % S B v
Ay S RO % -

received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due from banks or
placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

1.13 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

1.14 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially recognised and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious
metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

1.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about the following probable loss events:
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade level
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment together with all other financial assets that are not
individually significant or for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment
losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the accumulated
losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed through the income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are not reversed
through the income statement.
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank's balance sheet exceeds the
carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

1.17 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

49



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MR (8
1. EEEHBOR (&)

117 &k (%)

RV IE AR A
FERARSC SRR ) Bt - 4
B SRR
st -

A BT AR Y AR K
KBEMBRATRER AL
S W REH AT SR R
BRARIEI T  ALEA &
FFHRE S A& E
MRIHE = — 77 - 3% TR 4
S PASTIRR Bk AE 1% 2 Bl A
FIR - M AR E YIS
RIFEIE A - 5 HAR P daEE A4
KB > AL FEE
& BATA EAME R R 4
I T
A EBEREN -

PR ATl > B @ E
PR PIHERR -

EIREYZESRE M g1
BB EE HNENR
Y Z N PE & Ry
GEtIR LAYRAE - B
T H R E AR T A Ry
AV NIIREEEE

HEREE 16 5% "YU - B4
st R H
H 2 M i (B BLE NP 2
22800 Ry Po EE B A - T
TR A TR A -
APEEEEHE T2
iRk B E R - %I (E
R s 22 PtfERe - 10 DUE
EEHERAHRR SRR -

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.18 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value
based on periodic, at least annual, valuations by external independent valuers less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the
directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market value
of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a material
change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its respective
assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties Over the life of government land leases

Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations".
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(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases
Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are
classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e.
transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the land as
if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities.

1.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

1.22 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entittement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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(2) Leave entitlements (continued)

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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1.22 BEfEF (&) 1.22 Employee benefits (continued)
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under ‘“interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated
income statement by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense or income

1.23 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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1.23 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including available-for-sale
securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.24 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances
are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

1.25 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

1.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

1.27 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through sale, they are available for sale in their present condition
and their sale is highly probable. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, in accordance with
HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

1.28 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group;
(i) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting
group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject to
common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv)
controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation, approving
significant or high risk exposures or transactions.The Risk Management Committee would
refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is
desirable. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive is responsible for organizing and implementing the risk management
strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and
approving significant risk exposures or transactions within the authorization granted by the
Board of Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units
that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk
evaluating units shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion
of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

2.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies and procedures.
They report directly to the Credit and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive and
Risk Management Committee.

NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and
submits management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Chief Executive. Based on magagement needs,
the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related subordinates within the limit
authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and the extent of
the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to certain designated advances which satisfy certain
conditions. After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly)
reviewed by designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units.
Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given
default) are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit
approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit
transactions, including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if
applicable) are used to support credit approval.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk. For non-retail exposures, more
frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are provided to the
Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
EEREEREE (8) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

EFEFRUTA Debt securities and derivatives

BINETS 55 5 Mg A1b For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the obligor ratings or external
BENEE  KEEGIE credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
A& N SFR SIS customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
FHERAR ~ AL S 5 investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk
BHEENEZENKRER involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied for advances.
PR ssET AMEEIR On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.
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HMERENEERR ¥
TATTAERE S - RHEEER
% P IR BUEK—
M EA R R E
BUFEmb - A E R

S S LR

EEEE TFERERS Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
HFHERASNESS S - IR also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
FEFALIIR S ~ 255 equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or
e 2257 (-1 {H R BE 40 HA A equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to
JEUL O 5% 58 5 ¥ F- 1937 cover all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the
Group as the beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2014: Nil).
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(A) EERERE (A) Credit exposures
AEEH 5 {EEE The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
fg AR B T A AT without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
AR R A = on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
BRI B B R amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
o BNEEAMESE maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
WNEE > kmsERE called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
b AR AR S HR exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

B - BBE LR
B i (S B R
PERE IR AZRA
EEARBENEEN
Beisse A o HIRER
I K HAME S AT
G mEEERERE
HRIE AR SRR &

#H o

PUT B P i o ke The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
Hr = E 8RN effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

T R H AR &

BEREENEER

fE o

1E $R1T Fe HoAth £ Rl Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TERYAERR K IE BREFTX

BN ST These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
B e AR counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

BEdE o b —fet
B S A ORI

i e

N EE( LT AR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments
Z B RE R S E

&

— RN B 5 Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

ORIEH
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 =8RE (&)
(A) EEREEE (&)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”") transactions
are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following
the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from
one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking account of
the risk assessment of individual exposures. The components and nature of
contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note 4. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit
quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments,
15.74% (2014: 12.62%) was covered by collateral as at 31 December 2015.
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2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERETE (B) Gross advances and other accounts
PEEURE EF AT 48 Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
SRR HA AR IR by product type as follows:
AT
2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
wFPEK Advances to customers
{EPN Personal
- 5 - Mortgages 23,956,056 21,137,660
- EHF - Credit cards 732,148 1,058,032
- HAth - Others 9,827,384 9,260,192
AH] Corporate
- PHEEK - Commercial loans 115,579,409 110,404,053
- HORE - Trade finance 6,141,777 7,642,319
156,236,774 149,502,256
HoEE Trade bills 14,072,143 16,371,563
170,308,917 165,873,819
EHESIHE & Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
o HEARE AR principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
B R AT R 1E instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
= QIYI{EFamEE remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
K e JATERARAE R when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
ZEHO BHHP X not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
Sy HH 3 FE i B R continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
AR - A5I1E
FHRERE - ZHENHAE
Z B B IR 3K
NIEZEZFGEA - E2
B AR RE
o ER—HEH
ER /USRI
R > TRYIE
AR o
RS EcE s Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
SRR —EHE % objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and
TEFESL S KOEEE that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances
EAEREBELEESRT that can be reliably estimated.

FEHTH TSRS
RAGHR BT AZE
BB E RS -
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERETE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&)
FIESE-S TR If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
B R BE incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
&% HEESEZE amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
U T {E B R 2R B advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
&R T IR E W that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.
ZFEHETE D BRE
B E R AN
BB BaEBED

A EERE S A &
BRIBRIEA RN -

RKEHBREBEUTE The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
BB ERS impairment loss include:
U BURE L
- fERAHBEEK - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
HYRA TS PRI
- HEEELEG - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
BN & 17 2@ payment;
FHME AR B R
B
- EER - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
%5‘.%% REEH Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
N PP consider;
l%%)‘é Tl
T ERNERK
R LR
- HEBBERERK - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
N R i B reorganisation; or

TR 5

- HMHABERER - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
B BE &I R estimated future cash flows from such advances.
HIR R
HRHHEH T -
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SREEREE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERTE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€:-))
(a) FEBMEARKHT (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired
=¢7¢
JEREAAHAE Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit
TIENEEER grade as follows:
RISIHTATT
2015
FEME  EEMT
=1 Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEK Advances to customers
A Personal
- 1548 - Mortgages 23,676,398 23,002 1,265 23,700,665
- EHF - Credit cards 653,134 87 - 653,221
- HAth - Others 9,740,662 17,864 72 9,758,598
e Corporate
- BEEK - Commercial loans 113,588,886 1,407,580 285 114,996,751
- O RE - Trade finance 5,959,307 99,892 - 6,059,199
153,618,387 1,548,425 1,622 155,168,434
|2 Trade bills 14,072,143 - - 14,072,143
167,690,530 1,548,425 1,622 169,240,577
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2014
WY WEPEAT
G Special  Substandard 4a=t
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT AT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 20,837,952 19,811 1,729 20,859,492
- Credit cards 988,572 - 99 988,671
- Others 9,187,486 3,660 1,363 9,192,509
Corporate
- Commercial loans 107,368,945 1,492,590 29,394 108,890,929
- Trade finance 7,368,171 163,793 - 7,531,964
145,751,126 1,679,854 32,585 147,463,565
Trade bills 16,371,563 - - 16,371,563
162,122,689 1,679,854 32,585 163,835,128

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and

have been included in the above tables.
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Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2015
AT
3{EA
ERESE AR
6 @A 6 {E A
HHA 3 A Overdue BREH
EAYEN for 148
Overdue six months Overdue EHA
for or less for one iR 1E
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one =t
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
191,087 20 1,635 292 193,034
51,944 - - - 51,944
56,076 3,983 - 2,892 62,951
77,734 - - 17,384 95,118
18,863 6,201 - 1,207 26,271
395,704 10,204 1,635 21,775 429,318
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(B) BB HMARE

€-))
(b) BFHARBEERK
€:-))
HEEK Advances to customers
PN Personal
- %48 - Mortgages
- BHF - Credit cards
- HAt - Others
NG| Corporate
- PEE - Commercial loans
- R - Trade finance

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2014
A
3{EH
[EEN Y A
6 (& H 6 {E H
e 3 {5 H Overdue B
EdYaN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue #HrHH
for or less for one il 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one YAz
or less months six months year Total
T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
246,890 4,993 - 7,087 258,970
31,892 - - - 31,892
47,856 2,441 - 6,014 56,311
523,957 18,936 1,160 1,090 545,143
7,488 24 - - 7,512
858,083 26,394 1,160 14,191 899,828
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

77

2015 2014

FEH A

mifE [

LEEER Market G Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BETT BETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
62,357 77,392 19,198 12,425
26,983 - 37,469 -
5,835 1,147 11,372 10,027
487,540 231,164 967,981 883,162
56,307 1,071 102,843 45,703
639,022 310,774 1,138,863 951,317

434,377 732,356

2015 2014

BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

310,774 951,317

230,073 637,382

408,949 501,481
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&

(c) BEEK (&) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TBEEF B E The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
SR R collateral in respect of such advances.
fE(E -
#2015 4 12 A As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired trade bills (2014: Nil).

31 H - BARE
ZH 5 %K

( 2014 4F :
i) o
W5 E 4y HE 5RE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2R P EK G
AW :
2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FFE T FHEOREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
BB customers 684,698 1,254,636
FEE S HEORE Gross classified or impaired advances to
& PSR customers as a percentage of gross
BB AL advances to customers
& 0.44% 0.84%
L A SR A Individually assessed impairment
A 2 BB allowances made in respect of such
advances 433,567 731,598
HE 4y HE BV Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
CEPEHEE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
AR EEERE loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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MiEstR ) BoREE
B EEAS R 8 E 7Y
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

2015 2014
A% B R AR 18 = B AR
Btk Btk
% of gross % of gross
B advances to $%A advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 102,053 0.06% 261,805 0.17%
- one year or less
but over six
months 320,702 0.21% 153,074 0.10%
- over one year 203,026 0.13% 173,289 0.12%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 625,781 0.40% 588,168 0.39%
Individually
assessed
impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances 412,534 505,549
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 (28R (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€-))
(d) BEAEE 3@EB (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZER (8
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
b A R Current market value of collateral held
SNEFERZ against the covered portion of such
RS TE advances to customers 313,983 430,468
LatERE L EE Covered portion of such advances to
BB customers 228,914 284,182
AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
EIZEEERK customers 396,867 303,986
i HA B 3 e R R Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
=R R charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
EHENE RS corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHETHEAE
ENEERES
BT WARER
H T {EBEE
YISk -
A 2015 4 12 H As at 31 December 2015, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 H - HaiE months (2014: Nil).
B3EAEHE

(2014 41 fi) -

80



%) NCB #:f % k4t

M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€-))
(e) KEHHEEK (e) Rescheduled advances
2015 2014
{5 R 1 PR R
Btk H\orth
% of gross % of gross
458 advances to £5E advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEHE P EFCFH Rescheduled
(EREER advances to
Ui 3 (E A customers net
ZEH HY) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 1,329 0.00% 9,803 0.01%
KEHER T S Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
& R Ry B L renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
PR 8 B # BE 7 40 of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
HA % 500 4% Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months
EEEREREE under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more
FEtElZ g5 & than three months”.
STEAE ER
R E 4 & A
w3 HH
RIEFELE " amiAE
i 3{EH 2 &5
A o
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

2015
FEHFELE, fERlEHEr  4AEFHEZ
HLER  foEas BEEH RO
EESNEER BEE ESH R Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to  collateral or or A impairment impairment
customers other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
AT AT BT BEETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Z & Loans for use in Hong Kong
TG4 Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRR - Property development 5,448,761 15.36% - - - 14,435
- VIEEE - Property investment 10,849,282 92.84% 29,794 24,466 - 110,979
- R - Financial concerns 4,497,199 9.53% - - - 9,638
- BEEERRLD - Stockbrokers 480 100.00% - - - 4
- LS R T - Wholesale and retail trade 9,251,574 30.74% 87,956 103,927 65,156 69,887
- St - Manufacturing 8,523,132 23.30% 30,691 34,384 19,210 36,657
- i R AR - Transport and transport
equipment 4,316,243 7.66% - 360 - 13,381
- (REEED - Recreational activities 141,637 0.76% - - - 294
- EERREY - Information technology 741,295 2.40% 2,634 4,839 1,309 1,803
- HAth - Others 14,315,090 42.23% 19,729 25,474 16,498 71,945
EA Individuals
- EEEEFHEST - Loans for the purchase of
RN flats in Home Ownership
R R Scheme, Private Sector
P Participation Scheme
HE=#H
ﬁﬁé:ﬁﬁgj@ and Tenants Purchase
FH Scheme 364,199 99.88% 1,501 8,736 - 241
- MEEHM Y - Loans for purchase of
> EE other residential
properties 12,304,337 99.86% 648 53,917 - 5,401
- Hith - Others 7,338,950 56.81% 2,461 27,195 1,410 4,712
HEEHE 2 £5%4%H  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 78,092,179 50.43% 175,414 283,298 103,583 339,377
& Trade finance 6,141,777 33.44% 68,558 78,781 49,162 46,830
EEFHEDIMEF &% Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 72,002,818 39.30% 440,726 667,966 280,822 565,129
PR Gross advances to customers 156,236,774 44.63% 684,698 1,030,045 433,567 951,336
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(i) #ATRTEZ

H AR

(8

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2014
T ERETE Y GG
HoAth A FFE I TRAEZEM R IR
FEREHGEE EEZES SR Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to collateral or or A impairment impairment
customers _other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
A BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEEAEHZ &%) Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRE4EE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YR - Property development 3,109,845 30.32% - - - 10,877
- WIS - Property investment 12,223,689 86.15% 9,397 35,519 1,322 119,117
- SR - Financial concerns 2,001,248 21.71% - - - 5,040
- REEEEAD - Stockbrokers 101,383 1.35% - - - 236
- AR T EE - Wholesale and retail trade 11,956,256 26.82% 92,507 308,788 26,800 84,717
- Blhde - Manufacturing 6,307,305 23.80% 38,178 41,590 26,344 33,372
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 4,056,145 10.50% 30,386 6,486 12,159 14,822
- (REHEES) - Recreational activities 56,908 1.97% - - - 133
- EHEE - Information technology 1,728,779 1.80% 2,479 4,875 919 4,273
- HoAh - Others 13,754,281 44.32% 9,630 15,346 6,830 81,038
lEPN Individuals
- EEEEERST - Loans for the purchase of
RN flats in Home Ownership
%EF%E’IE’J&*H Scheme, Private Sector
are Participation Scheme
E HEs s
%%égﬂtjﬁ and Tenants Purchase
FLAER Scheme 455,145 99.99% 2,006 12,250 - 226
- BEEHM T - Loans for purchase of
T other residential
properties 10,333,678 99.51% 5,903 64,808 - 3,240
- (EHFE - Credit card advances 20,012 - 609 - - 290
- HoA - Others 6,759,164 41.17% 5,411 38,361 782 5,835
EEAEH E544%0  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 72,863,838 50.36% 196,506 528,023 75,156 363,216
S RhE Trade finance 7,642,319 27.90% 102,867 110,355 73,200 59,473
EEHEDIMEF &% Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 68,996,099 41.47% 955,263 1,249,484 583,242 815,833
PR Gross advances to customers 149,502,256 4511% 1,254,636 1,887,862 731,598 1,238,522
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong Kong
Trade finance
Loans for use outside Hong Kong

Gross advances to customers

84

2015 2014
WEHREE s e
Wl RIS LR iR B B
/ Classified or JMEXEMH  Classified or
o New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
AT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,201 2,279 2,484 3,237
1,116 - - -
58,030 8,634 13,970 5,433
8,405 12,015 7,173 3,244
- - 11,881 -
55 - - -
415 - 270 -
36,413 25,400 3,283 470
223 - 2 -
- - 32 -
14,413 16,002 18,262 17,193
120,271 64,330 57,357 29,577
85,798 91,386 55,594 4,339
935,173 992,314 899,775 344,936
1,141,242 1,148,030 1,012,726 378,852
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 EERE (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BEE R HATERIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(i) 42 3 28 1 1K 4y (il) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
BZEPEK
THIRN&EFE The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B H locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
15 43 Hr = AR 8 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
TS F A from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
Tt > W CBE R
JE B AL R 2 -
HEPERZ
NG TR
B 2 = p A 3t
NI v
Y EERA
ZPTEH -
S Gross advances to customers
2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 88,083,058 73,959,116
o [g7] AT HE, Mainland of China 61,013,223 69,650,228
HAh Others 7,140,493 5,892,912
156,236,774 149,502,256
REFERE Collectively assessed impairment
VP4 SR allowances in respect of the gross
i 2 BB % advances to customers
%
T Hong Kong 426,019 412,140
o R AT A, Mainland of China 452,571 730,437
HAth Others 72,746 95,945
951,336 1,238,522
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) Fh B I oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B H P E»K
daEa (8)
BHASEK Overdue advances
2015 2014
BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 276,118 332,232
o 5] A Mainland of China 739,435 1,546,827
HAh Others 14,492 8,803
1,030,045 1,887,862
w8 E Individually assessed impairment
EREEZ allowances in respect of the overdue
BB H advances
T Hong Kong 51,497 52,960
o 5] A 3 Mainland of China 368,279 546,644
FeAtt Others 436 1,448
420,212 601,052
w3 E Collectively assessed impairment
HEFM/Z allowances in respect of the overdue
BB H advances
Tk Hong Kong 3,741 6,660
R P HE Mainland of China 3,183 6,844
HA Others 56 20
6,980 13,524

86



65 NCB #15F 4% 44

MR (&)
2. SRiERREHE (&)

21 =8RE (&)

(B) BB HMARE
(8
) ZFRERETE
€:-))

(i) 42 3t 3 168 3k oy
M EFEX
HaEe (g

e 2 5 TR
ERX

&
At
HoAttr

B E S R
BEEKE
fEAIEPAG 2
BB EERE

I
Pt
HAth

RS Yba g S
AE B AIE
HARMhZ
TR XE

i
Pt

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Individually assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Collectively assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the

classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2015 2014
AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
131,490 151,434
552,753 1,101,806
455 1,396
684,698 1,254,636
59,480 55,235
373,651 674,915
436 1,448
433,567 731,598
1,043 3,524
1,187 1,609
2,230 5,133
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 (28R (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WEIEE (C) Repossessed assets
TEER - ARG E 8 During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
L ST U (] security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B RE T LA A6 summarised as follows:

12 H 31 HFAE
7E » HEE R AR {E

LT -
2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
[EESUES Commercial properties 4,251 .
TEVE Industrial properties 80,250 -
FEYE Residential properties 13,968 -
FAth Other - 583
98,469 583
AL 2015 4F 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HEFARKE December 2015 amounted to HK$122,509,000 (2014: HK$4,906,000). The
EE 2 [HE BB repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
122,509,000 IT access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
(2014 & : #w proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
4,906,000 jT ) i2H
SNBSS RN
FHHUAS: 7 B B A% )
RERVYIE (A0amiETE
R EE £ B
A E U7 =
) mHERARY
{3 75 1T S B
o & ENE R When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE I BN R consider the following alternatives:
EERKEBE AT
FI TR
- PR EEK - adjusting the selling prices
- HEEEE O - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHEEA - arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

2015
A3 DLF

Aaa % A3 Lower ki #Est

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT BT BETIT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Central banks 16,038,647 - - 16,038,647
Banks and other

financial
institutions 23,767,541 17,650,869 3,250,385 44,668,795
39,806,188 17,650,869 3,250,385 60,707,442
2014
A3 DLT
Aaa £ A3 Lower AR Y

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

HETIT BT BETOT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Central banks 18,694,761 - - 18,694,761
Banks and other

financial
institutions 20,208,603 20,003,535 16,963,308 57,175,446
38,903,364 20,003,535 16,963,308 75,870,207

As at 31 December 2015, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2014: Nil).
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(BE) BEEBRNERSE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
TEEDISEITEER The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
2 B8 55 M F K certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
SR - TR TR designated for the issuers are reported.
BEITEHLT - Al e
T AR R -
2015
A3 BT
Aal F Aa3 Al & A3 Lower AR 4E=t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BETT AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
nl ik ERE S Available-for-sale
securities 3,814,391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities 208,732 2,257,798 - - - 2,466,530
B FEUGER Loans and receivables - - 585,792 - - 585,792
NP EEE(EEFATEZE Financial assets at fair
B RE value through profit
or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 - - 6,963,572

4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875

2014
A3 DR
Aal & Aa3 Al £ A3 Lower SRR Yt
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AETTT ARMET-TT ARMETTT ARMET-TT AETTT ARMETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
n ik ERE Available-for-sale
securities 5,179,077 20,657,187 11,750,008 448,511 4,364,791 42,399,574
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities 243,450 1,759,590 615,350 - - 2,618,390
B R FELSGER Loans and receivables - - 62,421 - 2,012,173 2,074,594
INEESE(LEF AJB2Zs: Financial assets at fair
B RE value through profit
or loss 4,589,985 1,309,309 255,919 - - 6,155,213
10,012,512 23,726,086 12,683,698 448,511 6,376,964 53,247,771
2015412 H 31 H 8F As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired or overdue debt securities or
TRAE B 2 RS 5 certificates of deposit (2014: Nil).

g (2014 4 ¢ fi) -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 HiEER 2.2 Market risk

T 5 L g 2 15 R < il T 25
EE (PR~ AR~ RSUH
& ~ PR ) BN
HRASINE ~ FIIZR - ESERIPS
EEESY=RIEREREER =AY =
SEARERMTARHIIR - AR
9] R 2 o ) T 55 L
4 o R U B R Y P
fhy -

TS E BT B AR - 2ARR
A5 [ Y T e e 47 R 4
SEISERRARNS > (REESEERY
JoR e 7 B o) P2 LA B B
FB - AEHE SRS
ATREEECE AV TSR - (e
BRI RRE -

A SR N P o
ElalRAVEH TS E R &
FGLRHEE THERE
HERE mEEEASMN
TS5 R R IeRE B > 5 =
e B HHE - HREEE
fr2AEHEEEHEA
RIET HHEHE 8
B 2% A A [ 4 T R
DUk B B B R AN PR BT
I A HECREE AR NI By
35 g S P A T HE =2
KA - BRI -
HEI E i A mREE
% S8 Y e e R A8 1T B
72 E R R R A
EBEE AR ERE
R R IR AR - FR R Al =
[EEHARRE - (f
) E AL A B B e
P - By H R TS R e
PREFSRITIE L - A E A A
FY TS E B S B -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group's objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the
basis of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to
monitor the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss
reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excesses should
be reported at once when they occur. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit management
information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 msEERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)

N EE E 2 E T R S The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
2R PREE > R ~ 51 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
B~ R HIRT 42 ) T 45 L Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To
[ - F SR SIS EEE meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into four
BLFEEARFRA RS E ~ 1k levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
FEZE - WOEE ~ BRI THIER, Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units
DR BR R S (L BE g are required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.
fB) % o T2 bR

IREEGLE AR E B

Vu{E gk > o> Bl R E
HEEg AEAREH
ZRAgREEEREAS
#iAE B BALAERAE
1Y T 5 R B 4 A PR B
FEIPFHIRET -

(A) B (A) VAR

75 B ER g B The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
& — s E g o Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
FEHEEEEHEEE adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
gilSEEE A S and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
& o REEEHYG— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
Y s (e Ay limit of the Group and the Bank.

R SRR - DL

BE2EFE R T HY

B2  5HH99%

BEEAP T RLIRF

AP A SR M S T e

ASRATHYE R E > AL
R EAEERIARTT
F e (E R
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 msEERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) EbeE (#) (A) VAR (continued)
TERHFRAEH— The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the
% T 5 b FE A Y Group.
R (A -

e £ g
5 |R12H31H e {EEE HEEE W PeRE
At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
AT BT T BETT O BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRS E b E bR VAR for all market risk 2015 939 559 1,387 861
2014 635 635 1,901 1,181
PR R JeR o 2 e (L VAR for foreign exchange risk 2015 714 463 1,398 820
2014 544 544 1,975 1,145
FllZ R 2 JE b VAR for interest rate risk 2015 225 53 301 176
2014 274 225 883 644
e Note:
1R B FE S b A 1 e 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.

Halg e -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 TEER (8)
(A) EBRE (8D

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

e 28 I e {2 B
17 45 JE\ & /Y — JH
PR AR

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

PR - Bl

- RS SR — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
55t R A B AR encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
R EE B R PR A A

REHIRAYIEI -
F IR — LB Ui 55
s

- —REHEIEETE
73 7B RS P A B
By LE—H
WEIR SRS - B
T (B s R b BE 52
ESl A
b - JCHAETER
HFERR(EET - FTAE
KREAE—RFAH
BN = ST
FrAEEE |

REES - EHEA
9% E f5 K P
B BIRAESEE
It A5 K S BL AP
=OE A
Ei= VY4

— the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- B EEDE — VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
[ &8 S BS Ay 0E and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

Bt REE > N
JE S A — E S
2 5y B B A 1Y J

b -

94



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MR (&)
2. SRiERREHE (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 TEER (8)
(A EEE (8D

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)
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The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing
programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
including the 1997 Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of
the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 miEERE (#)
(B) SNEREE (&)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)
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The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

A 7 EEAHNE
FE IR RREE
BINEE L &E
B FENIEHRIE R
2015
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAth g AN
ET Other Total
us AR® foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 62,789,261 105,966,748 14,036,470 182,792,479
T EE Spot liabilities (56,280,126) (96,346,613) (10,103,847) (162,730,586)
EHIE A Forward purchases 23,762,419 7,770,358 2,767,918 34,300,695
EHIE Forward sales (28,585,949) (17,344,597) (6,688,061) (52,618,607)
TR Net long position 1,685,605 45,896 12,480 1,743,981
sEREMEE R TR Net structural position 293,056 8,431,220 - 8,724,276
2014
BB TTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAtr s SR LA
I Other Total
us Ak foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 50,714,856 129,625,777 10,170,515 190,511,148
HTEE Spot liabilities (49,057,989)  (113,019,787) (9,087,139) (171,164,915)
EHIE A Forward purchases 23,258,343 8,581,087 2,839,602 34,679,032
EHIE Forward sales (24,806,626) (25,023,970) (3,877,531) (53,708,127)
TR Net long position 108,584 163,107 45,447 317,138
sEREMEE R TR Net structural position 277,715 8,414,836 - 8,692,551
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2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 mEERE (8)
(C) FIREER

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.

97



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 mEERE (8)
(©) FiEkE (&)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

A o P R
EFER AR
JoE e B o R 92 L
REEE S gt
By CERAT IR A R
W EHEEER) > BE
BEEHEZAEGR
BT E R E A
RIERVE - M
BEHE EE =R
JEbREH - EEE
RAVECE T > W
EHEHEER
HERZ S GhE
HH HI R e b
BT gfEErR
PR B 2 B B B
oo EEEHY
% BT A AR
FIPREE - 5FAh H AR
BHEAM VPR
ST AR I e
BUR B IR T IS
W R E L PR
VB B 2 S
AR 2= o oy P
EE

The Group'’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate
risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Treasury
Division, Financial Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
Committee to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
are not limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies,
setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management
reports to the Management and Risk Management Committee.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 HsEEkE (8) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIxmbz (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
75 [E 3% o 3R i The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor
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and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP”), net
interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV”). The
indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved by the Risk
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Deputy
General Manager of Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business units are required
to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before
launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 wmRERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

R EOR g b & NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
(NI A 4% 775 {8 {E R income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
HLL R (EV) [ L F] former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
AR ) S A percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
SUVONGI- Y impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
s B AEEE flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest
i) 2 i B Y R rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
JE B EAE - g = Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book
IR S By LB 5+ interest rate risk.
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KEHEKHE SRS The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
M F0BE 3 M0 3K 75 rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
o FHEARF R T and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from
SRITHR AT RE K 211y the optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 wmRERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
R E B R The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
IT~ ZETC SN B interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2015, if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market
KE i o 2 2015 interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
F12H31H currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net interest income over
HIC FEIT AR a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have been as follows:
FA U s 2 4 AT
& 100 {EEES -
FOAL R ZE A
T HWEERE 12
(ENERCPEZRIISYI N
T S B 1 BB S
T :
12 A 31 H¥RAK 12 @A
AR AR
Impact on net interest income 12 B 31 H B EfErsses
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014

AT BT BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT HK Dollar 298,266 256,299 (79,004) (46,786)
¥ US Dollar (74,762) (32,688) (114,872) (60,416)
ANE#E Renminbi (39,332) (13,535) (301,279) (324,817)
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)
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2.2 HisEEkE (8) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Ll E SR The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above currencies has
WA I E decreased when compared with 2014 and is mainly because of the widened short term
ity 2014 FJF /0 F negative gaps in US Dollar and Renminbi. Reserves would have been reduced because
HHRETEAR of the expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a parallel
W L5 g () 4 B A ) shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is increased
R A 5% R compared with 2014 because the size of available-for-sale securities in capital market is
FiTEl - [EI6 > ATk increased.

EErgRHmE

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including but not limited to the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2015
—% == TR
—EAN  =@EA +TEA —EAF  AFEHLE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- daxt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT AB¥TR  EETT EBETT B¥TT BETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
[EE{EIR 4 R AR RUERAT R HoAth Cash and balances with banks
BRIMEREIIGSER and other financial institutions 50,565,792 - - - - 3,679,013 54,244,805
T R A SRS —= Placements with banks and
+{HH N FH 2 B other financial institutions
e maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - - 7,056,785
ANHES( b A B &R Financial assets at fair value
B through profit or loss 1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 249,280 - - 6,963,572
ST E Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 696,266 696,266
B At RS Advances and other accounts 107,765,185 28,446,478 27,748,294 4,792,519 171,538 - 168,924,014
EFTE Financial investments
- ATt - Available-for-sale 8,601,020 10,455,974 14,442,944 18,494,300 356,810 4,613 52,355,661
- FEZFIHA - Held-to-maturity - - 208,771 2,167,759 - - 2,466,530
- SR TEWER - Loans and receivables 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - - 585792
REYE Investment properties - - - - - 414,736 414,736
Y ~ B Rk Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
HitrEE (EFEREY R EE Other assets (including current
MIEERE) and deferred tax assets) 31 - - - - 4,347,852 4,347,883
FHEEE Assets held for sale - - - - - 132,729 132,729
HERH Total assets 168,877,279 44,586,995 49,217,084 25703,858 528,348 16,283,229 305,196,793
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
—= =% TR
—fEAR =@EA  +=EA —EHE  A#AENE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4Rt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BTt EBlRTT BT BN BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 19,054,571 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 2,715,841 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 302,944 302,944
Deposits from customers 135,919,721 34,269,925 30,101,149 5,512,157 - 12,459,031 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 1,666,422 2,713,701 6,158,633 454,913 19,427 2,961,586 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - - - - - 21,884 21,884
Total liabilities 157,725,200 41,392,782 44,532,258 5,967,070 19,427 18,461,286 268,098,023
Interest sensitivity gap 11,152,079 3,194,213 4,684,826 19,736,788 508,921 (2,178,057) 37,098,770
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2.2 mgEER (8D
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2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

2014
—% =5 AEtE
—{HAA =EH +=E@F  —EEFE  AFMLE Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT AT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
[EETFIR 4 R AERRTT L i Cash and balances with banks
SRR S e and other financial institutions 54,183,243 - - - - 4,099,557 58,282,800
R R EM SRS —2 Placements with banks and
1l H N EHIE other financial institutions
bi'd maturing between one and
twelve months - 9,477,006 8,703,756 - - - 18,180,762
NHES bt AEm 2 &Rt Financial assets at fair value
BiE through profit or loss 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 255,919 - - 6,155,213
TTESETE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 439,072 439,072
SRR H AR Advances and other accounts 108,282,638 31,356,774 20,553,491 3,451,440 259,356 - 163,903,699
BEEE Financial investments
- ke - Available-for-sale 2,375,913 10,487,111 12,504,107 16,466,480 565,963 75,766 42,475,340
- A EEEH - Held-to-maturity - - - 1,998,756 619,634 - 2,618,390
- B EER - Loans and receivables - 620,262 1,454,332 - - - 2,074,594
&Y Investment properties - - - - - 1,280,271 1,280,271
YISE ~ B BeaR i Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,328,497 7,328,497
HitrZE (EFERERIEE Other assets (including deferred
) tax assets) 2,208 - - - - 1,163,407 1,165,615
HEEE Total assets 165,314,002 54,613,046 45,973,087 22,172,595 1,444,953 14,386,570 303,904,253
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2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 wHiBEE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=EpE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2014
—% =% AEE
—EAR =EAH +=E@F —ERE AFME Non-
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1t05 Over interest- dEst
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

AT ARt ANt AR T ARt ARt AR
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

=0 Liabilities
SRAT R Ath 4 RS 2 1K Deposits and balances from
&S banks and other financial
institutions 18,391,118 9,332,830 8,050,874 - - 1,960,789 37,735,611
AN PEE T AR Z &R Financial liabilities at fair value
HfE through profit or loss 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
e T A Derivative financial instruments - - y - - 278506 278,506
B Deposits from customers 122,791,320 36,089,981 32,061,913 9,455,287 - 9,235,434 209,633,935
HARETE K e (EIEIEST Other accounts and provisions
FRIE R EfRTE A ) (including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 5,111,293 2,685,535 4,055,058 194,043 736 4,343,999 16,390,664
HIREE Total liabilities 148,272,222 48,982,291 46,286,102 9,649,330 736 15,818,728 269,009,409
FRBURE GO Interest sensitivity gap 17,041,780 5,630,755  (313,015) 12,523,265 1,444,217 (1,432,158) 34,894,844
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I EENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 RErEsRE 2.3 Liquidity risk
RENE e bR T Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R AR TR E 4 2L obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity
JESETE R e E T2 risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
HHZT MR RERZ needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
AR BB Z AR - A cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the
RS ER RN E lender of last resort.
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2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 RErELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities
and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its
asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain
sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business
needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in
case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering
liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk
management guideline to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liabitity Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”"), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative
Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow
analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also
performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate
liquidity risk management duties.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes.
The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 day maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December 2015, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the
Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to
HK$9,723,236,000 (2014: HK$4,424,474,000) and was in compliance with the internal
limit requirements.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2015, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2015,
the Bank's liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$29,189,795,000 (2014:
HK$20,399,765,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action
plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2015, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 60%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Managemment Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the
basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own
liquidity management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own
liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.

112



%) NCB #:f % k4t

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. RlEREHE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)
2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) REMEESER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio
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2015 FFRIEHE
2015 quarter ended
12H31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
Average value of
liquidity
coverage ratio 120.02% 114.10% 163.68% 123.70%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with
the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £RIEEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) REEEELRR (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio (continued)
&SR (&)

2014
P RENE R Average liquidity ratio 51.99%
SEHRENE bR The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the arithmetical mean of each calendar
EUARSRITENE month’s average liquidity ratio of the Bank for the year.
A¥ERgh&Esth
RNEMTFEEET
o
TRENE SRR The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong Kong offices only) and is in
B CERITEER) accordance with the predecessor Fourth Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)

23 REESEE (%)
(B) EHAR M

TREAEHR 12
A 31 HZ&EER
BENEHH S
o ER&EEH
I > e S A

2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis

2. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

FE & SIFHA H A9
BREAMR TS -
2015
—z =
B —EAA =@ +ZEA —FEHF HEME THEE
On Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HEA Ha=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
b1 e by bt by bt by b4
Tt Tt Tt T Tt T Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKPF000 HK$H000 HK$H000 HK$H000 HK$000
HiE Assets
[EAFIR & RAFRRIT R HoAt 4/ Cash and balances with banks and
HERETAEER other financial institutions 13,738,576 31,379,966 - - 9,126,263 54,244,805
TESRTT R EA &Rtk — %2+ Placements with banks and other
{8 A P EIHH - E R financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - 7,056,785
NEEE R ABLS 2 &RlERE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- X5 — Held for trading
- EBEE — Debt securities 1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 - - 6,714,292
- FUERLUAHEE LEA — Designated at fair value
fisEe through profit or loss
- BB — Debt securities - - - 2,168 247,112 - 249,280
THEeRT A Derivative financial instruments 320,134 96,765 21,483 255,610 2,274 - 696,266
SR HA AR Advances and other accounts
- BEES — Advances to customers 5,500,045 7,436,513 14,184,098 36,000,440 61,815,074 29,138,201 777,500 154,851,871
- E5Eg — Trade bills 7 3372536 4,090,506 6,609,094 - - 14,072,143
SRMEE Financial investments
- O E — Available-for-sale
- ElES — Debt securities 7,295,867 6,428,028 8,657,828 18,096,760 356,810 - 40,835,293
- FEE — Certificates of deposit 216,318 1,404,198 6,404,497 3,018,675 - - 11,043,688
— Hith — Others 472,067 - - - - 472,067
- FPEZEEIHH — Held-to-maturity
- {BEfES — Debt securities - 1,237 299,330 2,165,963 - 2,466,530
— ESOREIGR — Loans and receivables
- B S — Debt securities 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - 585,792
- Bnsgss — Equity securities - N B 4,613 4613
Rz Investment properties - - - 414,736 414,736
WIS ~ BN Rk Properties, plant and equipment - - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
HoAE R (RIS R IEERRTE  Other assets (including current
HE) and deferred tax assets) 164,183 3,936,533 13,518 134,702 (7,648) 106,595 4,347,883
FEARE Assets held for sale - 132,729 - - - - 132,729
B Total assets 19,722,945 56,284,545 31,827,611 65,090,744 85,338,210 29,495,011 17,437,727 305,196,793
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2015
—Z =
B —EAA =@ +ZEA —FEHF HEME THEE
on Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HEA =t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
bl b bl b bl b bl b
R Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKFO00 HK$SO000 HKFO00 HKPF000 HKS$ 000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 3,648,010 18,122,402 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - 1084486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments 103,804 76,539 29,472 73,219 19,910 - 302,944
Deposits from customers 90,852,158 55,539,932 34,371,019 31,798,000 5,700,874 - 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 1,998,248 1,315,194 2,943,651 6,315,257 1,376,345 25,987 - 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale 21,884 - - - 21,884
Total liabilities 96,602,220 76,160,437 41,753,298 46,458,952 7,097,129 25,987 - 268,098,023
Net liquidity gap (76,879,275) (19,875,892) (9,925,687) 18,631,792 78,241,081 29,469,024 17,437,727 37,098,770
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2. SrRlEEEE (8)
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2014
—& =5
Bl — AN =®EA @A —2AF AFEME NHEE
On Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HHA 4=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$S000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 25,068,696 21,881,782 - - 11,332,322 58,282,800
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 9,477,006 8,703,756 - - 18,180,762
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
— Debt securities 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 - - 5,899,294
— Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities - - - 2,170 253,749 - 255,919
Derivative financial instruments 352,831 18,163 18,247 46,452 3,379 - 439,072
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers 5,600,078 9,742,952 16,597,492 36,208,391 52,393,120 26,179,173 810,930 147,532,136
— Trade bills 32,219 4,961,240 7,500,572 3,877,532 - - 16,371,563
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities 71,704 1,121,059 5,071,150 1,633,772 - - 7,897,685
- Certificates of deposit 1,282,624 6,181,988 8,984,351 17,486,963 565,963 - 34,501,889
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities - 1,415 644 1,996,697 619,634 - 2,618,390
— Loans and receivables
— Debt securities - 620,262 1,454,332 - - 2,074,594
— Equity securities - - - 75,766 75,766
Investment properties - - - 1,280,271 1,280,271
Properties, plant and equipment - - - 7,328,497 7,328,497
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 185,402 779,942 3,202 47,394 139,094 46 10,535 1,165,615
Total assets 31,239,226 39,208,407 44,193,136 67,153,573 73,906,774 27,364,816 20,838,321 303,904,253
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2014
—& =%
g —EAN =EA FoEA EAF EENE FRE
On Upto 1to3 3to 12 1t05 Over H A 4t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
et bl bt b bt b bt b
Tt TIT Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 2,649,041 17,702,866 9,332,830 8,050,874 - - 37,735,611
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - 4,970,693
Derivative financial instruments 98,057 86,204 30,223 32,269 31,753 - 278,506
Deposits from customers 75,443,820 54,407,895 35,397,115 34,231,783 10,153,322 - 209,633,935
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 4,834,848 3,156,033 2,893,494 4,333,573 1,171,922 794 - 16,390,664
Total liabilities 83,025,766 77,331,489 48,527,607 48,766,756 11,356,997 794 - 269,009,409
Net liquidity gap (51,786,540) (38,123,082) (4,334,471) 18,386,817 62,549,777 27,364,022 20,838,321 34,894,844

118



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #HAH M (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

At BHE H 435875 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
J IR CPRATSE (I E8) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
BRI MBI as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
4l o AREE A as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
Nig# 1 [HE2E instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
E > ISR R A5 overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
2555k TR & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
E o EHNEAR [EIEEE reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
HoHEEZE any.

& HAZEEPE

5% 3 B 2 1 77 H 1R

TRz - HAth AR E 5

ZE S T AR
FIERIHPR 798 - B R
EHEGEEZHEE
FHEEE > AR
AR By AR EE H
iy o BMTIRZE
7E E B A 7] 45
B (AFE) -

¥ e B HA H HHE The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
BEss2othE R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G (R () does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 REESRE (8

(C) BEQEHE T
ZARITEBRES

2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(@) FFTAETRZH
EIR

ES IR
FEERL 12 531
HZ IR
BEUFEREL
FHIHYIRZ B

Ao
SEa ©

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for
non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2015
—& =z
—ERAN =@EE +-EA —ZEAF AFME
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over et
1 month  months months years  5years Total
i b bid i i bid
FE Fr TR FR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRAE Financial liabilities
BRIT R LM <RS2 7K Deposits and balances from banks and
presind other financial institutions 21,779,006 2,508,618 6,731,882 - - 31,019,506
INPES R ATBS 2 SRt Financial liabilities at fair value through
=N profit or loss 1,084,500 1,908,000 1,583,500 - - 4,576,000
ZEER Deposits from customers 146,416,843 34,462,462 32,206,656 6,056,730 - 219,142,691
Hith&mhE & Other financial liabilities 3,151,954 2,732,681 6,292,647 506,860 26,038 12,710,180
SR A EETE Total financial liabilities 172,432,303 41,611,761 46,814,685 6,563,590 26,038 267,448,377
2014
—F =%
—{EHA =A +{EA —ZAFE AFEME
Up to 1to3 3t012 1t05 Over dEEt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
bt i ptcd g bt et
T Tt Tt Tt T Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRAE Financial liabilities
BRIT R LM RS > 7K Deposits and balances from banks and
presind other financial institutions 20,388,137 9,396,895 8,182,134 - - 37,967,166
INPES R ATBS 2 SRt Financial liabilities at fair value through
&iE profit or loss 1,978,500 874,000 2,119,000 - - 4,971,500
ZEER Deposits from customers 129,885,722 35,519,941 34,833,788 11,008,039 - 211,247,490
Hith&mhE & Other financial liabilities 7,636,441 2,688,501 4,078,030 194,912 794 14,598,678
SRiAEYEE Total financial liabilities 159,888,800 48,479,337 49,212,952 11,202,951 794 268,784,834
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £RIEEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) EEYNFHEHAE ST (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZRITHRBRER

(&)

(b) FHAETHEZ IS (b) Derivative cash flows
7t
R T AR The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
By 12 H 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DU &5 & &9 5 HA be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
H% r2Z W4 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
T BFE T AR or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
RERZITESE undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
R R R fair value.
MR ARG H
P1EeR TECR
mAMGBE
EBRE) - FRED
SETETEDIA
SHEFIRIN TR
2 B2 1y FHA & 4H
35 R AR HTELHY
EEBRER o
B2 [E o R AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BEEE T T4 4 mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
Fh T B ¥ A RE will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
GBS EURNE swaps.
ARG R 21T
A THYH
BiEEEE R

Bl -
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) HEQRIHA S

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZRIFBERESR
(&
(b) FHAETEZHS (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)
(&)
2015
—Z =z
—ERR =@H +=#H —ZA%F AEME
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over gEst
1 month months months years 5years Total
i i i i b b
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Eivok iEE = Derivative financial
H2LTES liabilities settled on a
E= net basis (104,510) (2,043) (17,962) (8,160) (132,675)
P A EE A ST Derivative financial
H2i4EE instruments settled on
BT H a gross basis
DTN Total inflow 22,039,048 7,838,682 13,446,442 75,357 43,399,529
4B HY Total outflow (22,024,752) (7,850,203) (13,357,472)  (75,249) - (43,307,676)
2014
—Z =%
—{EAA =@EA +ZEA —2RHE AFME
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 4EET
1 month months months years 5 years Total
el el Al A A A
Tt Tt T Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E/ok ¥ R e Derivative financial
B2iEE liabilities settled on a
ghEE net basis (100,241) (9,011) (25,332) (15,614) (150,198)
P A EE A ST Derivative financial
H2i4EE instruments settled
BT E on a gross basis
DTN Total inflow 20,417,338 6,924,041 11,252,454 834,845 39,428,678
QST Total outflow (20,719,023) (6,952,942) (11,370,225) (834,202) - (39,876,392)
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)

23 REESEE (%)

C) HELEHE I
ZRITEBR &R
(&

(c) & & & {1 &4
HH

A B A % E R
2015 4 12 [ 31
H 17 %5 5 R G I
£ (5 B R CH: At
BRI BT
o BRae8R
b i
86,380,519,000
7t (2014 £ : 3%
"
74,498,453,000
T HEERUK
PEA R — 2
HL

SV 755 ¥ % B H A

MR

ALY 2015 4
12 7 31 A7
9 DR e Al 75
il < A T B Y
36,313,017,000
7t (2014 4 : 3
"
38,415,882,000
g HEHIH D
A

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
at 31 December 2015 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
other facilities totalled HK$86,380,519,000 (2014: HK$74,498,453,000). Those
loan commitments can be drawn within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
2015 totalled HK$36,313,017,000 (2014: HK$38,415,882,000) are maturing no
later than one year.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 FAEHE

2.4 Capital management

2&%. &R H )

B U R BRI R R
ﬂﬁyzﬁkﬂffmmﬂ’] =¥
JE K [RGB AR 2K
KO- EEEEEE
ZE g E e AL
BRI WAE TG
P DU B - (O]
B A TE SR R B R
1 o

REHCOKETL—EFR
BHVE A BB SR A
PR > G BT BAF
I E IO 58 L BT L
FrEBERIER e
EEEARATERNE
K-BEABEEEZEY

ERGREMNEALAT

JEME - AR s I B
NIRRT E B & & IH
EERNETELRH
TE o FEAT

AR E R BTN
SRR AT ER
H oy R R R J—Uiyz
RIERE B R EA
KA Wﬁl’*¥*&;@§2’%
(F b st RA T HEE
ZR B ARl g AR HE AT (S
SRR EAZDR /NS
15 & B R FI 4 4
Ak (FERE) st5E
ETH - AR EIER AL (S
BffERE A HER
AEE M EHERERE
LT EATK -

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the
internal ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”") method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty.

124



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BAREE (8)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

AEEEE RN
AETEART EAME A
R — 5 g & A
HORO WEE R AR
Rt RSN 1T R
7 (D 51y
NP i 1 7 2R T 555 L
BB ATIR - A BB
PRATEEAE (TR ) &1
FUAST R AR 5
BATK -

AR HEE(E
BRI Rt RA R
BRIEREBREAEIK -

BT 2015 FAEFTR
MM ES A TE e e (G 12
PR &2 RSB
T TEEEERET
WEYEDR - 28 R
ZEHATES D MEEA
7R SRR P 1 %A 2
PSS ST RA
HE BT M E R E R
JEBG T AR BRI NE A » 7
111 3% T A 252 [ e K 32 2
P — SRR ~ ff
— A AR R R R4
BALER o [\ - AL
JRHE A ALY A EE AR 3%
TETHMFER > DR
BREFEE L R ETA
HIERGE - AAEER R
WE B AT e sF il fE
- EFENEAEH
MR M E R E S AR
B T gz DR OV 1T E P
& e LR N
-

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions arising from overseas branches
and NCB(China) in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues to
adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market risk capital
charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate
the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP") to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2015. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREM (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)

AN AREBEGESHEE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
EEAHE HEEAR Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHZEOEFRESE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
Eaif - BB on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FoRmg ~ Bk [a - capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
IRF - SRR - B ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR o FE BT E A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
T B MR B2 4 T TEHI return and capital adequacy.

RIRE AT K EATK

TR DRI SR AR 4R B

HHTEAT R R E R

MG ook
JE& > PR ~ Rl
AFE e AR P o

(A) BEGOERE (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

B E A S The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank

R (SR1TE% and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking
(&R #HA) B4 (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance

SRAT R H My &E with HKFRSs.

[ E Z i A E]

GHEY - R TR EE T

1] - A7 B AR

et AR QAT & I S

AT -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)

2.4 BAEHE (8)

(A) BEBGOER ()

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

FFETE G s EHI &R The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
G e consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as
BEHESGHE .
- follows:
PN B S A B 22 5
BT :
2015 2014
BEWEH B B BEARLEEH
g Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
AT AT HERETT HRETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEREIRTEAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
/NG| Trustee Limited 16,355 16,246 16,295 16,186
EFEEEEEARA Kwong Li Nam Investment
H] Agency Limited 4,248 4,026 4,481 4,027
FEEREFERIT (RELA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BHIRAHE (Nominees) Limited 1,472 1,472 1,477 1,477
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2.4 BAEHE (8)

(A)

®)

BESOER (&)

2015412 A 31
H AL
5] LR B
e T e
EAEGH RGO
il (2014 7

fi2) -

A 20154 12 H§ 31
H o I T
F [E AL
# HIHI BE B FE 4
& #E A E
& & J7 7k (2014
o)

BEARLE

R — A
Eb&

—HREARLER

TR

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

(B) Capital ratio

2015 2014

CETL1 capital ratio
16.18% 14.19%
Tier 1 capital ratio 16.18% 14.19%
Total capital ratio 18.38% 16.55%
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREHE (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALLR (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
ARETEUL &R The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
bhae 7 HUR R 1Y 47 capital ratios is analysed as follows:
& B AREHE S A
T
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR — AR A A ¢ BB CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Fe et
HESTHEEREE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
REME— SR A AN instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
FPRE A Retained earnings 25,495,966 22,764,425
B S Disclosed reserves 8,451,135 8,978,910
BEEHIR 2 RS A e CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
—HEAR 37,091,618 34,887,852
HAEIEE—RE A B CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
K
{H{E % Valuation adjustments (8,617) (3,465)
AR AR R TE A A Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
PRIV (5,962) (152,171)
HAHEESER AR Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
RIA B3 P e risk on fair valued liabilities
B P4 AR (537) 877)
R4 Rz (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
KB R ) HErTE revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
(B E AR B fE investment properties)
EEWE (6,190,605) (6,919,824)
—NESR TR R s Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
it (2,255,673) (2,173,590)
S S R — AR A S Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
B (8,461,394) (9,249,927)
WA — B CET1 capital 28,630,224 25,637,925
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREHE (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALLR (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—IREA Tier 1 capital 28,630,224 25,637,925
THEAR B R RS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
GEREGAZLEAT Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
ERERE AR R — A reserve for general banking risks eligible for
HRITHREEE G inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,116,112 1,155,025
BB B —4E A Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,116,112 1,155,025
ZEGER ¢ BEEUR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
TE&EESE A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
AHY PR S A 3 R TR from the revaluation of land and buildings
YI(BRMSERR) (own-use and investment properties) eligible for
EITEEEAMESE inclusion in Tier 2 capital
B SR AP A 2,785,772 3,113,921
B HE AR EE T Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
4EEH 2,785,772 3,113,921
TARER Tier 2 capital 3,901,884 4,268,946
B Total capital 32,532,108 29,906,871
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREHE (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
R (SR17% (& The capital conservation buffer ratio, higher loss absorbency ratio, countercyclical
A HHRAL) > Brsg capital buffer ratio (“CCyB ratio”) and the applicable JCCyB ratios for Hong Kong and
EEARLLRE - e non-Hong Kong jurisdictions for 2015 are 0% in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
W U 5 5 BE ST tE Rules.

R WG EE
ALb# (TCCyB Lt
R ) RAEEERIF
T E R ERY
] ICCyB LEF?
2015 198 0% -

AREARE BN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
i w &R TR Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

PN =

www.ncb.com.hk

o TERE R, —

HiEE -
(C) TERREER (C) Leverage ratio
2015
BT
HK$'000
—RER Tier 1 capital 28,630,224
TR A8 R Leverage ratio exposure 339,678,093
TEFREE®R Leverage ratio 8.43%
HRAESRLL RS The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
F 8 78 B0 R A A “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
w7 # H

www.nch.com.hk
b TEEEREE ) —
iR -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. EENAENANYE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities

B LA EEF BB 1S All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

HWENWENEENAE statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
iR AV GHRSGAERIZFE13  measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
gk TAHEENR NESR significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input

AN EEREAN T - % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
RS RSB T AR
FEIRZE Z T RER
[E PR YA o VA K
BHEPE Y RIREHRE

FREE

- E—jg4 fHEEERNE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BEEETS R ®RE liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain governments and
(RECHEL ) - B4 s certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

B85y BURF S8 TR TR
PN ST &

&y e
- BEIIES  TYENMEER - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
TP E FH B B R = 4 (R 2= the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
( [EIEFEE R g 2 (E 5 majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EHEAEE) nyER from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
a2 - [ Eak e insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

TERE N AHICTE
G~ B E RS L ER
JEM BRI FRS 38 55 B 7
KRG o [FIF IR BRG] T
BTSN RET T A E
AR S RS o

- B THREEAMEER - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
T RTER F Y {2 4] (R 2= the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment and
( [EIHEE g\ E 5 debt instruments with significant unobservable components. It also includes properties with
EHEAEE) BN significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

HZE - IEREEAEAR
B AR E
FAAB TR - FFR NS
BRI R ET
TERHEAIE
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

$ DL R B AR R A S
WRIVEE N AR AR
G — R B AS
HHEHRAEEE (ER
HRESN P EET R A EAGE
8 RREHNER ) LIS
AEEN P EESZ ML
LY

3.1 DIAPEENSRT
=)

REEBILT BZHL
SHEER RAERIAE > &
S B H R T Y AR
HY 42 i B (7 T E A%
o B S PRI
1T AT 4RFE TS 2 A (E 45
RRERAPHEEE - H
ity S 2 R PP EL R A%
HAEENEESE - E
R A S5 T [0 B g
bEH -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Management.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

S1DAPENENSRT

8 (8

A A B T
BN AL
(FGUECCIET!
R 2 30 B ACHE S 2 T
LA TEAE -

BN AL FTR A RY
T A > HAS ER A HE A
NEHESBEERRE
8~ IR - MR - REnE e
HE SEAERS ~ IRl ~ X5
TEEFZERHME - £
B R e A BT B 2R
FAERUN S8 -

M LA E LT s fh T B
APEIIEETTENOT -

E7% LB R AFikEE

R T BB A P E B
ST ~ A B N AL
i {EL PR 7% B B s 2 ik Ay
7 5 e 18 = {0 P A 3R 3
EFUERLIIATITIHRIE ©
TR B RUAA A  — {E A
FTHETARARER 207 PA—
] 52 Bk T 355 AR
[ B Y T B R S B A
72 Z W AR B G IR 2 A
ST B pCR [E Y (5 E L
il - B LSRR ]
B g s B 2R A ]
BZRATTISEIEEE -

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

S1DAPENENSRT

8 (8

CETH

BN GHITTAE TR A
HYEIFEANEE ~ IR ~ JeSE
B A ~ 5
HEEL - PTETRGEM
B8 T % R ERR < 0R
TR R B S (E AL A 55
(BT E - FTEFHEY
SRR T2 SR AT
LTSS - RN S
BRI ~ AR - RS
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Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured
using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs
include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices
and volatilities.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’'s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

S1DAPENENSRT
8 (8

(A) ATERIER

(A) Fair value hierarchy

2015
£—E% BERE% FE=EK 4HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERIEE Financial assets
A EE L AfRs Financial assets at fair value
Z A E through profit or loss
X GMEEE - Trading assets
—(EHsEE T - Debt securities - 6,714,292 - 6,714,292
—FLE Ry LA SR 8 - Financial assets
{EEF AR designated at fair value
BRIAEE through profit or loss
—(E a0 55 - Debt securities - 249,280 . 249,280
PR TR Derivative financial
instruments 320,134 376,132 - 696,266
Available-for-sale financial
T E SRS E assets
—(EBES 5 R - Debt securities and
P26t certificates of deposit 2,814,257 49,064,724 - 51,878,981
—HelraEss - Equity securities - - 4,613 4,613
~ At - Others - - 472,067 472,067
SRS (E Financial liabilities
AN FEE( LT AR Financial liabilities at fair value
Z R (R through profit or loss
=1 - Trading liabilities - 4,575,356 - 4,575,356
PSR TR Derivative financial
instruments 103,804 199,140 - 302,944
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

S1DAPENENSRT
8 (8

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) AHERIES (8D

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2014
—Jg4k g E=IEh HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
AP EE R A8 Financial assets at fair value
Z R E through profit or loss
SEGVEEE - Trading assets
— (S - Debt securities - 5,899,294 - 5,899,294
—FE R LN EE S - Financial assets
ﬂ:ﬁf\%ﬁz designated at fair value
BRI through profit or loss
—1;?%% - Debt securities - 255,919 - 255,919
PR TR Derivative financial
instruments 352,831 86,237 4 439,072
] Rl Available-for-sale financial
assets
—EHE T - Debt securities and
FAlE certificates of deposit - 42,399,574 - 42,399,574
—HeinEEs - Equity securities - - 75,766 75,766
G i Financial liabilities
’\*WE B(LET AR Financial liabilities at fair value
Sl =i through profit or loss
—i%‘fﬁzéﬁé - Trading liabilities - 4,970,693 - 4,970,693
PR TR Derivative financial
instruments 98,057 180,421 28 278,506
REE SRIEE M There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
BERNENTSHESE Group during the year (2014: Nil).
—BEEE B
RS (2014 4F ¢
i)
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. EEMABIAYE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

31 PAREHENSET 3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
2 (8
(B) E=BRHVEE® (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items
B
2015
SRHEE
Financial assets
TTESRTR Tt E SR E
O$%E) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets
Financial R85
Instruments Equity Hitl,
(net) securities Others
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201541 H1H At 1 January 2015 4 75,766
ez Gains
- HAtrgmmliss - Other comprehensive
income
- T ERE G - Change in fair value of
NEEEE available-for-sale
securities - 11,679 -
HA Purchases - - 472,067
B Sales - (82,832) -
=1 Settlements 4 -
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 4,613 472,067
2015412 A 31 H Total unrealised gains for
FrANERE ERE the year included in
e AU TRATARE income statement for
AU 48 %R financial assets held as

at 31 December 2015
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

3.1 DAAHEETERER T

8 (8

(B) E=EBHRAVHEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

B (&)
2014
ERIEE
Financial assets
TTEER TR T E R A
(F%E) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets
Financial FRGE Bl e8 7%
Instruments Certificates Equity
(net) of deposit securities
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H2014FE1H1H At 1 January 2014 - 2,136,848 63,965
log=S Gains
- sk - Income statement 4 - -
- HAtrgmlizs - Other comprehensive
income
- Ok EREAE - Change in fair value of
NS = available-for-sale
securities - 660 11,801
BHH Sales - (2,057,390) -
S =gk Transfer out of level 3 - (80,118) -
W20144F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 4 - 75,766
W20144F 12 H 31 H Total unrealised gains for
FrAMNEREERE the year included in
et AU FRATARE income statement for
PR R 4a%E financial assets held as
at 31 December 2014 4 - -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of debt instruments, certificates of deposit and unlisted equity shares.

Certificates of deposit were transferred out of level 3 in the year of 2014 due to
improvement of valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt instruments, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable
inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been
classified by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$231,000 (2014: HK$3,788,000).
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

3.2 JEDANHEET BRI SR

IR

PR — R E I
BB T S E R
7] < il T B 2 Bk AT
fili - NN Z 55 R e
HH S DU R I A
BEEM TR ZAPE -

BB 1 R SRAT e HoAth

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

S BT 2 G5 B Y 5
ESid

KR 2 SR EE R A
(EURIS SN RRe S
FH > HARH{EBNF
B -

EE L
KEDSY 2% P T
Bl S AR
FIE. HLAEH (I TE
-

AR A
FAEZEHHES A
SEEBEE L 3.1 AL
NEESTEMNER TE
KAFF SR A 2 A8
E] °

SR EK

B EBGR 2 2 PE
AEE AR EE 3.1 DL
HE ERHB LARE
SR 2 DA -

B EAEA
K5 2 5 PR
S e —ENEI 5
BT (A -

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers
Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as
those debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in
Note 3.1.

Loans and receivables
The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 3.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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3.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being

approximation of fair values.

2015 2014
FREE AYE R THIE AEAE
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
BT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity
securities 2,466,530 2,557,828 2,618,390 2,668,585
Loans and receivables 585,792 586,376 2,074,594 2,072,809

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans and receivables

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities

2015
F—E%R SE%R B=E% et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT BT AB%TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 2,557,828 - 2,557,828
- 586,376 - 586,376

2014
BB ETESR PSR 4t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 2,668,585 - 2,668,585
- 2,072,809 - 2,072,809

Loans and receivables
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
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The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of
properties being valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on
the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in
valuation methods during the year.

Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties and
the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

33 AR EHENIESRE 3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
TIEHE (&
BBV EE () Investment properties and premises (continued)
HEE = ER AP ER Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
HHVER
W REE = BRI AR The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using
FEEHYFE 2 AN EEEF either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted for
MGt AU A& a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the
AL FEAREEYIFEM comparable properties.

R ALY ZE
TEPTHR (H AR E -

DU ABENEEET =T The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
B ERE =R measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
REEPISETER R EI(S
(B I775 B E R A AT EE
ER
FHBREREN HEATR S
fEETTE ERFUEERE pilit;: S Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAth¥2E itz iaw voz=rd WEY/E < EES el vE7/E e -8% i {EEE  AERkE -
Other U ABEAE Bl rE) (2014: -12%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to Prigike » A FEEIK -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach
L E EEa e W YE e Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various
MWE F2isfE s (GBE) factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,
VEE =1 WY e floor level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable
FEINZE LR - properties.
WK% 2 i E) -
s ~ N - B
AR ~ I ~ I~ A
ST E -

144



%) NCB #:f % k4t
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3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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Precious metals

3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
- Premises
Other assets
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
- Premises
Other assets
- Precious metals

2015
E—E% Bk F=Ek 4HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 414,736 414,736
- 310,266 6,462,986 6,773,252
- 53,393 - 53,393

2014
E—lBal E Bk FE=EH HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETTE BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 1,280,271 1,280,271
- 213,970 6,821,340 7,035,310
- 11,691 - 11,691

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2014: Nil).
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3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2015
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Sales
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2015

- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015
JEeREE

Non-financial assets
VI~ B R
B4
Properties,
plant and
&Y% equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,280,271 6,821,340
35,446 -
- 2,321
- 353,940
- (123,176)
2,903 26,099
(901,200) (376,178)
- (217,000)
(1,498) 1,498
(1,186) (25,858)
414,736 6,462,986
35,446 -
- 2,321
35,446 2,321
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

3.3 PATREEHEHIESE 3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

IE (8

(B) E=J841E H &) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
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At 1 January 2014
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of properties, plant
and equipment
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31
December 2014
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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2014
e E

Non-financial assets
VI3 - 2aht B
Eedit
Properties,
plant and
¥ equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,147,938 4,677,510
126,896 -
- 2,033
- 336,325
- (65,649)
821 28,906
30,000 1,830,099
(24,085) 24,085
(1,299) (11,969)
1,280,271 6,821,340
126,896 -
- 2,033
126,896 2,033
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEMAMBHIANE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable
properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with
reference to differences in features between the subject properties and the
comparable properties recently transacted in the market. As comparable
properties that come from recent market transactions may be different in each
year, the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly. As a result,
the significance of adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and
lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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M HENE: (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

4. $idersf 4. Hedge accounting
BINEIER RS Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
2015412 H 31 H 4 As at 31 December 2015, there was no RMB-denominated deposits from customers
BAREBAENEEER designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
Wi R T > FHDIS operations (2014: HK$1,393,565,000).

HUBSNEIEIERE (2014
0 g 1,393,565,000

TC) e
FEWNGH Y 5 2 W s There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
5 18 A UL 3R = N HERR during the year (2014: Nil).

(2014 4 @ 4) -
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5. Contingent liabilities and commitments

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

adequacy ratio.

Direct credit substitutes

Transaction-related contingencies

Trade-related contingencies

Asset sales with recourse

Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice

Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up to one year
- over one year

Credit risk-weighted amount

2015 2014
AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

21,262,146 23,145,228
1,830,203 2,571,980
7,801,271 7,957,417
5,419,397 4,741,257

75,313,331 68,666,899
1,983,255 1,158,435
9,083,933 4,673,119

122,693,536 112,914,335
21,148,878 16,759,631

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity

characteristics of each type of contract.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

6. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment
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The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with
non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities
information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per
square foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference
arising from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income
statement, is also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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6. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

EAST ST
Personal Corporate BrEE% wE Hih INeH BBHES fotsy
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
AT T AT T AT T AT AT AT T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 December
2015
Net interest
income/(expense)
- External (66,016) 2,397,178 2,388,988 4,720,150 4,720,150
- Inter-segment 980,296 235,717 (1,216,013)
914,280 2,632,895 1,172,975 4,720,150 4,720,150
Net fee and commission
income 695,053 596,096 67,101 65 (1,365) 1,356,950 1,356,950
Net trading gain/(loss) 43,272 (31,466) 3,345 39,025 an 54,159 54,159
Net loss on financial
instruments designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (6,382) (6,382) (6,382)
Net gain on other financial
assets 79,531 184,998 71,892 336,421 336,421
Other operating income 185 149,052 6,278 155,515 (113,107) 42,408
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 1,652,790 3,277,056 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 6,616,813 (113,107) 6,503,706
Net charge of impairment
allowances (106,584) (526,740) (633,324) (633,324)
Net operating income 1,546,206 2,750,316 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 5,983,489 (113,107) 5,870,382
Operating expenses (953,955)  (1,121,281) (275,988) (205,721) (188,324)  (2,745,269) 113,107  (2,632,162)
Operating profit/(loss) 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 (17,579) (111,536) 3,238,220 3,238,220
Net gain from disposal
of/fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 121,046 121,046 121,046
Net gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 19,246 19,246 19,246
Profit/(loss) before
taxation 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 122,713 (111,536) 3,378,512 3,378,512
At 31 December 2015
ASSETS
Segment assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,458,268 129,316 305,064,064 305,064,064
Assets held for sale 132,729 132,729 132,729
Total assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,590,997 129,316 305,196,793 305,196,793
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,711,990 268,076,139 268,076,139
Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale 21,884 21,884 21,884
Total liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,733,874 268,098,023 268,098,023
Year ended 31 December
2015
Other information
Capital expenditure 77,143 77,143 77,143
Depreciation 16,616 8,849 671 205,711 (9,030) 222,817 222,817
Amortisation of securities (120,379) (120,379) (120,379)
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6. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

8 ASRIT T
Personal Corporate W& K& Hitr /Nt AOFES G
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
AT AT AT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 December
2014
Net interest
income/(expense)
- External (418,490) 2,750,511 2,858,028 5,190,049 5,190,049
- Inter-segment 1,307,961 (114,871)  (1,193,090)
889,471 2,635,640 1,664,938 5,190,049 5,190,049
Net fee and commission
income/(expenses) 538,300 623,126 94,697 95 (1,492) 1,254,726 1,254,726
Net trading gain/(loss) 50,406 105572 (125,113) (22,424) 417 8,858 8,858
Net loss on financial
instruments designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (7,958) (7,958) (7,958)
Net gain on other financial
assets 28,888 93,642 122,530 122,530
Other operating income 140 174 174,357 13,780 188,451 (117,643) 70,808
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 1,478,317 3,393,400 1,720,206 152,028 12,705 6,756,656 (117,643) 6,639,013
Net charge of impairment
allowances (45,453) (858,841) (904,294) (904,294)
Net operating income 1,432,864 2,534,559 1,720,206 152,028 12,705 5,852,362 (117,643) 5,734,719
Operating expenses (763,907)  (1,257,493) (301,253) (204,538) (88,041)  (2,615,232) 117,643  (2,497,589)
Operating profit/(loss) 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 (52,510) (75,336) 3,237,130 3,237,130
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 129,896 129,896 129,896
Net loss from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (347) (347) (347)
Profit/(loss) before
taxation 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 77,039 (75,336) 3,366,679 3,366,679
At 31 December 2014
ASSETS
Segment assets 33,101,750 132,582,987 129,285,776 8,717,158 216,582 303,904,253 303,904,253
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 103,437,642 120,438,397 43,259,903 7,582 1,865,885 269,009,409 269,009,409
Year ended 31 December
2014
Other information
Capital expenditure 85,817 85,817 85,817
Depreciation 10,350 5,705 982 204,528 3,203 224,768 224,768
Amortisation of securities 90,773 90,773 90,773
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MsERitsE () Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

6. ofEHRE (&) 6. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) #MEEIRE S (b) By geographical area
DI ERHER B E A E The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
f 3 S SEH LAY W subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
KT BED Bl a s reporting the results or booking the assets:
R EERIR Y
STRTEN 58 -
2015 2014
PREUBE R HRT o TREHUBRMARERRD
ZIREBUA ERERRT IR Bt
Net operating ezl Net operating SEF
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BETT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Hong Kong 4,054,030 2,823,205 4,059,329 3,149,295
o [5] A Mainland of China 2,381,416 509,623 2,535,739 207,655
HoAth Others 68,260 45,684 43,945 9,729
&t Total 6,503,706 3,378,512 6,639,013 3,366,679
2015
WARAEARIE
Contingent
BEE Y=t E k=3 liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s Hong Kong 188,707,746 165,544,765 6,733,035 39,662,023
s Y HE Mainland of China 114,108,360 102,324,412 786,367 82,596,097
HoAh, Others 2,380,687 228,846 2,034 435,416
&it Total 305,196,793 268,098,023 7,521,436 122,693,536
2014
AR R
Contingent
Kk E ek IEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT T BT T AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHH Hong Kong 184,505,742 162,047,271 7,835,833 33,849,154
R A Mainland of China 116,624,065 104,331,044 775,587 78,941,179
HAthr Others 2,774,446 2,631,094 2,349 124,002
&it Total 303,904,253 269,009,409 8,613,769 112,914,335
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MBRFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. BEIRHEE 7. Assets pledged as security

#2015 412 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2015, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$4,581,856,000
N =4 B E B (2014: HK$6,532,608,000) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
4,581,856,000 T (2014 facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilites of the Group amounting to
4 e 6,532,608,000 HK$478,835,000 (2014: HK$2,090,606,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
T ) BLAERUA PR related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
24 DIMERGEE Y B EE to secure these liabilites was HK$5,084,230,000 (2014: HK$8,677,155,000) mainly
HEHH o hoh > AREEE R included in “Trading assets”, “Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.

B 1% B T s Y (R 5558 27
B SRR B R
478,835,000 jr ( 2014
¢ A 2,090,606,000
7T » AEEERIEEA
(R 1 B E < B e
W 5,084,230,000 71( 2014
&£ 0 A 8,677,155,000
7o) WEBR TG ME
EJ N rﬁﬁﬁQﬁJ 54 r%\j
S IR -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

8. Significant related party transactions

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation (“CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin"), BOC and BOCHK in which Central Huijin has controlling
equity interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn controlled by
BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2015, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$9,358,822,000 (2014: HK$4,756,693,000) and HK$12,219,755,000 (2014:
HK$13,986,923,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31
December 2015 were HK$90,422,000 (2014: HK$295,494,000) and HK$141,518,000
(2014: HK$191,080,000) respectively. Transactions with other companies controlled
by BOC are not considered material.
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MsERitsE () Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

8. FEEREALRS 8. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

() HEAE REAE

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

TP NP
A5 ()

RE S Bl P R A LT
1932 55 B &R &
gy - 4 2015 £F 12 H
31 H » AEEHRAEUL
R JERT R SR E R TEAE
Mo oBl kB
1,106,735,000 It
( 2014 4F : W
1,840,662,000 J©) K
M 12,628,797,000
I (2014 4E : e
17,173,914,000 7¢) -
HE 2015 £ 12 A 31
HIEFRE » BrpsRE
AL S AR A
AU B S AR 5
7] By 3,037,000 7T
( 2014 4F : W
2,560,000 j©) Kkl
331,591,000 7t (2014
£ M 729,578,000
JC) °

PAER A
FREHRFET
SREE - HBEESIR
& 986,800,000 T K
7&%% 392,600,000 JT
R BRI 7
7 PSS I Bl
#% 85,600,000 T ki
#% 16,422,000 70 32 5
T MR R
-

KEGY BLEF A 1
HthASNZ SIHE R
A o 1A 2015 4R 12
A 31 H » AFEEHR
AOTE KA B R B
15,630,974,000 I
( 2014 4 : & W
12,914,910,000 7¢) -
HE 2015 £ 12 A 31
H IR - BREAE] 32
il Hofth A =] AE L
EV B EAR
o ok B
149,213,000 ¢ (2014
4 ¢ ke 83,057,000
JC) °

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arises from money market activities. As at 31
December 2015, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOCHK of the Group
were HK$1,106,735,000 (2014: HK$1,840,662,000) and HK$12,628,797,000 (2014:
HK$17,173,914,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOCHK for the year ended 31
December 2015 were HK$3,037,000 (2014: HK$2,560,000) and HK$331,591,000
(2014: HK$729,578,000) respectively.

During the year, the Group sold certain investment properties and premises to BOCHK
with selling price amounting to HK$986,800,000 and HK$392,600,000 respectively.
The gain from disposal of investment properties and premises were approximately
HK$85,600,000 and HK$16,422,000 respectively. The transactions were entered on
normal commercial terms.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2015, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$15,630,974,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$12,914,910,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from
these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$149,213,000 (2014: HK$83,057,000).
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

8. FEERIEALTARE 8. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) ERAE REAE (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
e &) 2 Hofth o\ =] controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

B Bz g2 5N - B Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
ISYNET) S Sv/NE1E 245 g companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.
HAth A EEITHISC S
REKX -

(b) BEE FFiehss ~ (CIE% (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
B B R state controlled entities
BRI RS
drEE A BRI B #5 B The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
R T Ry D g AN EE through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
BT - TR EEA number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
B SR B 5 o R 2 2 state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
BURFHEES ~ (IR - authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
B T A e LAtk (B 122 of business at commercial terms.

B A L R B
REHMEE - REH
SR PR BU
P - PR - TS
R By HoA B A P
BT H HSRIT SR L

5 o

EHZ G EEERRR These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

A THIETIE ¢

- e RS e - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
IRFIBEZ RN

- SRITHEIZEZ FI S - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
B

- HE - HEE - B - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
g ] Ely LAt B A 2 controlled entities;
HERFTEITZET

- FROLYNE - PR AE R - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
&R

- RAMEREE S & - provision of fiduciary activities; and

- HEENHEEE - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.
TH - EE REEAR
e
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8. FEEREALRES 8. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors and Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 24,623 26,740
Post-employment benefits 1,642 1,694
26,265 28,434

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$1,440,338,000 (2014:
HK$1,963,019,00) and HK$226,650,000 (2014: HK$316,242,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

9. International claims

LU o3t 92 B A BRI
RTRGt 2 R ERHE
FBEERE R I 4R - BUFE
IR S B TR
AR 12 LIS 5 3
T AR R AR
oyt HEERIERERTA &
W 2 BS R (R AR Sh
WE(RRE - EEREZIEIRA

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head
office is located.

T B 2 3 T AT
A > A RS =
RAZFTEH, - E
AT MBHMAT o R
T GRS 2oL 8T 2 BT
e -

SR [ P {1 2% e 8
H T RS 1 5
P REQE%E 10%E0 DL

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

ZARMET ¢
2015
ST RIS
Non-bank private sector
JEaRAT B
RIS E =
BEITHEE Non-bank AR
BT Official financial Non-financial faxt
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BT BRI BETT AT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o [5] A H Mainland of China 34,617,405 859,966 286,850 25,347,925 61,112,146
EH Hong Kong 1,581,719 25,114 2,392,489 32,771,230 36,770,552
(&%)
(Restated)
2014
FESRITRANIRRE
Non-bank private sector
IFSRTT B
Bty i Bl
BT Non-bank FANRE
ST Official financial  Non-financial Yzt
Banks sector institutions _ private sector Total
AT AT AT ARETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [5] A H Mainland of China 36,252,631 942,469 660,677 34,282,844 72,138,621
T Hong Kong 253,134 2,305,880 588,883 24,251,030 27,398,927

EEEFTERH YT - D
EARFEZIRP -

The comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

10. Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIRIRIT A 5 B TRy 3t
1 B g AR e Z 3 i 5 2
RAEMAMERZ 28R
AR AVIERIS RS 2 %
T AEUA1 B L 3 JE Bz 251 o
3 - PhER BT S AIRTT R
HREBERITRBZIME L
F] L Pt gAY

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank

counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion

instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

FROLEU ~ BURRFA
g - HIfE A REE
¥

HOTBUR ~ A BURRFA
g - HIfE A REE
13

PR N fE R A A 5

SRR R =N
H R EERE

FEFELE B — IR
JiF PR ELA A

T EFEAE AU I TR
JiF IR

FHEFHRINE R BRI NE
AR - HAREENRY
BE

ot = Fh 3 T EL R i
Wt Ry ESRATAI Pt e
ZR

Hast

HRAE 1R BB ENEEH

B AR Y E B R A
& S 7L

2015
BEER BEAH
=] RAH RIMY
$FEIE JERG AR R RE
Items in On-balance Off-balance  4EJEfE&RE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT AT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 23,932,429 2,995,217 26,927,646
Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 13,890,604 2,709,320 16,599,924
PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 47,421,978 27,853,433 75,275,411
Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above 4 2,623,361 - 2,623,361
Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above 5 15,330 - 15,330
PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 7,511,143 1,037,765 8,548,908
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,245,489 - 5,245,489
Total 8 100,640,334 34,595,735 135,236,069
Total assets after provision 9 313,731,968
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 32.08%
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10. FESRITHYPIHEERK

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

10. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

® ('
2014
HEAR HEAMR
SEE LA FIN
HFEIEH JE\F AR JE\F AR
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance 408 iR g R
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RLERT ~ R E A Central government, central
g ENEATRGE government-owned entities and their
=5 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 20,451,874 1151441 30,603,315
HOFBUR ~ #OFEURFRFARY Local governments, local
i HifB AT NEER government-owned entities and their
i3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 11,599,566 1,810,301 13,409,867
hEEE A E RS M {EE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
MEEEIHES ~ HHEA or other entities incorporated in
B R EERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 50,180,366 29,896,773 80,077,139
FafEfe Fultss—IEhoEy  Other entities of central government
IRF P RS A RS not reported in item 1 above 4 318,005 - 318,005
RE$EE Faliss — 15 5 Other entities of local governments not
JEF N B L A A reported in item 2 above 5 R } :
TR EEREINE REEREESME  PRC nationals residing outside
fegtsrs - HAREEAR Mainland or entities incorporated
EE outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 6,980,121 1,183,797 8,163,918
Hixs 55 FmEEEEE  Other counterparties where the
HEAR s ESRTT I A S exposures are considered to be
HRKE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,177,267 - 5,177,267
Y=t Total 8 103,707,199 34,042,312 137,749,511
HURE S 120 E EYEEE Total assets after provision 9 310,553,707
LEABENNER K On-balance sheet exposures as
IS EMEEHE I percentage of total assets 10 33.39%
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

11. 5 - T RE/EEM 11. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
HNEEEEA

T EE R - TS EE B ERE The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and operational risk are
ElgEstEEEEANIEEDR described in Note 2.4 to the Financial statements.

ARG 2.4 L -

THEMAZ SR FEFE The table below summarises the regulatory capital computed on the same consolidation basis
ZEE - SRR FEIGEE for credit, market, and operational risks.

2015 2014
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BTz Credit risk 13,410,279 13,828,215
i35 Market risk 48,993 45,648
HRFJE R Operational risk 980,405 900,408
14,439,677 14,774,271
BRAEE EREHNE For details of capital management and capital ratios of the Group, please refer to Note 2.4 to
LEREENs » 55 RS HEMEE  the Financial statements.
2.4 -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

12. EEEBESRHE
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12. Capital requirements for credit risk

The tables below show the capital requirements for each class and subclass of credit risk

exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the IRB approach

Corporate
Specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
approach
- Project finance
Small-and-medium sized corporates
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Other retail to individuals
Small business retail
Others
Cash items
Other items

Credit valuation adjustment

Total capital requirements for exposures under the IRB
approach

Capital required for exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Public sector entities
Banks
Corporates
Collective Investment Scheme
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposures other than securities
financing transactions and derivative contracts

Securities financing transactions and derivative
contracts

Total capital requirements for exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk exposures
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2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

62,440 119,626
1,103,473 1,328,166
6,613,901 6,031,115
3,153,853 3,763,767

- 920

141,256 80,229
8,526 5,836
269,898 271,595
12,840 17,195
669,864 745,981
8,412 6,549
12,044,463 12,370,979
45,740 10,915
11,001 2,238
2,630 103,306
598,407 674,242
37,765 §
122,207 140,094
486,548 447,824
22,992 44,895
8,729 7,548
28,727 25,557
1,070 617
1,365,816 1,457,236
13,410,279 13,828,215
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak EX#EETFE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
THEERERE

13.1 NEEER £ % b B 4l 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components

ARGy

Bt EEGEEARER » K The Group adopts the FIRB approach to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for
EEE R 7 S EFSRIT most of the corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting criteria
N JeR o A (58 P R A 50 approach to project finance exposures under specialised lending. The Group adopts
SPARELAESEDE > BEPY retail IRB approach for retail exposures to individuals and small business. The following
M ERyTE H R A is the table showing the Group’s different capital calculation approaches to each asset
B EMEREEE - HHE class and sub-classes of exposures (other than securitisation exposures).

AFINEZERY R B K
B E AT
EPEUE - TRINHASERE
BEENERTIIEZR
bR (PR LA
AR HES) PR HIRYEA
EEJTE -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NE LR L4 b B 4l 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

BERsy ()
HESE ToEEERRE BEASTETTA
Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
IR bR E BB AT ROE TIVEPIMEE R CHERE | BB SRR EDE
Corporate exposures Specialised lending under supervisory slotting  |Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach
criteria approach (project finance)
U/ NRE FEBE NS EOA
Small-and-medium sized corporates FIRB Approach
Hit s
Other corporates
BT E RS bR BEITER T (EERR) HRE
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach
B TR AR
Sovereign foreign public sector entities
LB RIRIT
Multilateral development banks
PRAT LB RS T BN S AR S T R A
Bank exposures Banks FIRB Approach
B/
Securities firms
AEE (CFEEBE TR AR ) [BRE (ERRK) 5505
Public sector entities (excluding sovereign Standardised (credit risk) Approach
foreign public sector entities)
T faRIE [EUNER 2=/ B ENE AT EA
Retail exposures Residential mortgages to individuals Retail IRB Approach
ZERN SR ERK
Residential mortgages to property-holding shell
companies
BEBIGREE
Qualifying revolving retail
HoftfE A
Other retail to individuals
eI
Small business retail
PR JE P - rE (FEER) sHRE
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
EAth B R BEIHE e bR B S TR A
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach
HAtrHE
Other items
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEEER £ % b B 4l 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeES ()

(A) AEFRAGERR

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

P EREPER 25 MR ERAR
HIFER R

A5 ] {5 F 9 P T
B F T — (R T
AL > oy BRI
RN B SRR R
i o FR R FERIERTTAL
G FEBARER A
ISR R/ ONGRY:ES]
[ > 2 (ERPARAEE
[ # N\ — ELEZY
I L BHE R AR S
HIRFER FRZR

A LR A et 2
DIEfTER R - 3R
TRIZEEBARE
QR (PD) - LUK fE
HZE BN E TR
TRVE T EE R K
R R KR
(LGD) i1 7 &7 & b K
{E(EAD) -

AER 8 A Y ER R AR
ZAREHERTA N EEE
SRR RUE TR
ARVELYATREVE - &
QIR G RAERIA—
FEHANHYEL R -
FERCANE B S
FERE TE Y B AR A
BN AEERE

GERDN-SR =R/ ONE Py
o TR R
RS B DA s B
K& E -

FETEE (B85 A RFaRHY
BiEd - e
N EATHIM BRI
Mgy - EHEEE
ESARGE S0l
SEERIHEE A EN
R BTG > 3
PERLAE R H SRR LA
TEMAET [E &R R
THETHAENRERN
REJTRIEEI -

ratings and external ratings

The Group’s internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that provides
separate assessment of borrower and transaction characteristics. For corporate and
bank portfolios, the obligor rating dimension reflects exclusively the risk of borrower
default and the facility rating dimension reflects transaction specific factors that affect
the loss severity in the case of borrower default.

The Group uses statistical models to provide own estimated probability of default
(“PD") for its corporate, bank and retail borrowers, and loss given default (“LGD") and
exposure at default (“EAD”) for retail exposures under retail IRB approach.

The Group uses internal rating system to assess the borrower’s likelihood of default
for all IRB portfolios. PD estimates the risk of borrower default over a one-year period.
A borrower credit grade means a grouping of similar credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of specified and distinct set of rating criteria, from
which the average PD are derived for risk-weighted assets calculation.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial performance,
management quality, industry risks, group connection and negative warning signals of
each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict borrower's ability and
willingness to meet with the contractual obligations under different economic
conditions.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEEER £ % b B 4l 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeES ()

(A) AEFRAGERR

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

P EREPER 25 MR ERAR
HFEmGR (8D

ARSEMISRAT R AR
BEEGBERE R
FoB{EFTS NGTAR - B
FETEIF BB A
G HLam oy 2266 (=
BRI L8 E L4
Bl - Mg E R
SIRUE - (EHEE Y
SRR AR IR E
R AR > 77 Fed
18 2 49 AT L8
B - HNEE
WEREPAR AT FA
HERTEMNR > 1%
B AME - 258
B~ FEA R A
RSy Ry R IRl
R~ BRI
FEL BRI R -

SR TR B EAEE
MR R A E
FEEHBER - &
& 15 B8 2565 B 2R
¥ ~ HAE A ZE R
BRHERIZ /M3
L B K HE R B 4T
R BLBRARE
Qg AR YA B —
BAIE R E T A
B - REeERES]
BUE - FTA IR
THIERER G E:

TLI(ERTAR (FEIRE
CIREREE) - &
QRRRELEL R
GEE R R R IR RS
(EL) - FIIHE SR
T BALRTAS -

ratings and external ratings (continued)

The obligors for corporate and bank, and retail PD pools are assigned into eight
broad obligor ratings including seven grades for non-defaulted obligors with
sub-divisions into 26 minor credit grades and one for defaulted obligors. In the
supervisory slotting criteria approach for the project finance exposures, there are four
grades for non-defaulted borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance
with the HKMA guidance. The estimates for retail IRB portfolios are pooled by nature
of obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status into different PD,
EAD and LGD pools. This pooling process provides the basis of accurate and
consistent estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level for exposures arising
from residential mortgages to both individuals and property-holding shell companies,
qualifying revolving retail exposures and other retail exposures to individuals and
small business retail exposures. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are
assigned facility ratings (in terms of LGD) in accordance with the HKMA guidance.
LGD estimates multiplied by the PD estimates produce the expected loss (“EL")
estimates, which are used to assess credit risk quantitatively.
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 AERFFR ARSI KRS
RRERSY (8D

13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) NETRAGEER
PRSP S5 MR R 4R
HFEmR (8D

(B N B R B 4

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
ratings and external ratings (continued)

For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of default risk is as

JE\B AR FE RS0 B A) below:
HiEDT
PR E E4RA WEREHR E 2 HERE T ETR
Internal Credit Standard & Poor’s
Grades Definition of Internal Ratings Equivalent
1 BB AR BRI 2 g~ Ky E4 E | The obligors in grades “1” and “2” have AAA
2 W o extremely low default risk. AA+
B BRI IR - The obligor’s capacity to meet its financial AA
A h commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong. AA-
3 BB AR 3" T EELEE - {HfE— |The obligors in grade “3” have low default A+
SERERE_FA R N A RIS ERIE ALK |risk but are somewhat susceptible to the
PR » BT TS EAIRE T G - adverse effects of changes in circumstances A
- U and economic conditions.
However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation is A-
very strong.
4 BB AR B4 FmAE Y24 JE G | The obligors in grade “4” have relatively low BBB+
HIRAEYE B4Rk - [T a2 F4E |default risk and are currently under adequate
SR ER 2 (LR T 1 S5 L 17 % |Protection. . " BBB
TR LIRS However, adverse economic conditions or
7 changing circumstances are likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet BBB-
its financial commitment on the obligation.
5 BB AR B For R EELEE - ¥ | The obligors in grade “5” have medium BB+
AR B T At/ D B pR e |default risk which are less vulnerable to
o nonpayment than other speculative obligors.
" et . However, they face major ongoing BB
H A% ~ 4 El IES T
;;Ei;i;kmgsgggﬁygizﬁ uncertainties or exposure to ad_verse 3
o TS e |business, financial, or economic conditions
RS NMEERE T A IR AETTRUS ST < |which could lead to the obligor’s inadequate BB-
capacity to meet its financial commitment on
the obligation.
6 BB AR 6"FrEEE 2R &L E G | The obligors in grade “6” have significant to B+
TS5 IR R A very high default risk and are vulnerable to
REBA B AN EEEIRTER '?ﬂgpoaglggrst.currently and in the near term
FHE o [EAFIIVETS - s G . o : B
i%ﬁ’%ﬁ;;igﬁgiéﬁégg have the capacity to meet its financial
DA RS RO SRR commitment on the obligation but adverse
R - business, financial, or economic conditions
will very likely impair the obligor’s capacity or B-
willingness to meet its financial commitment
on the obligation.
7 IS NG 7o i s E LY E R H AT | The obligors in grade “7” have very high ccc
N FEHFG A=, (5 se e |default risk and are currently quite
A 755 HIBRAR A ¢ (1675 \BE 7S |default risk and ly qui
FEBEEE LR RS A AR vulnerable to nonpayment. The obligors’
R BT oy ability to meet their financial commitment
ﬁ ?Zﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%%%,ﬁgggg and obligation are dependent upon favorable cc
bl = CARERUAIRITIR 1pysiness, financial, and economic
BEAL - conditions.
In the event of adverse business, financial, C
or economic conditions, these obligors are
not likely to have the capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.
8 B AR 8" TN B GELY » Obligors rated “8” are in payment default. D
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEREEK £ % B B B 4H 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeES ()

(B) ABMERERIRR

(B) Use of internal estimates

ARG BRI R LI
ES U CNENN R e S
FRTT R\ R B
EAEAS > RinieA
WA EEEBE
B EEPRA R
3 BRI FE
LR BB PE R A
RoEANGEES
it EEEE 8
Je\ it 5 B AT

€ EERREETAZ

EEREEER

HNEREHIE T
AR L > A
FEFEH STl R 2L
FEHE AN BER
TR - Wi (R
1736 (|A) HAD
HiEERREEELR
FEFF AR EEOR -

PR FHEBE A BT EY
PAE RIS RA
RHYE BB
HEm] R
Rt 5 TR
HYSRTT ~ (s LLRGE
730N F A At Y
Or - REEIEERER
AT A (5 SRR
SEARERITR > HEE
EERRERRIERA
HYREELIIRIR

Besides using PD estimates for regulatory capital calculation in corporate and bank
exposures, the Group uses the PD together with the LGD and EAD estimates in the
credit approval, credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information,
etc., for the purpose of strengthening the daily management on all credit related
matters.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For collateral recognised under capital management, the Group has well-defined
policies and procedures for collateral valuation and management which are compliant
with the operational requirements for recognised collateral of credit risk mitigation as
stated in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

For the credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation purpose, the
recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees provided by banks, corporates
and securities firms with a lower risk weights than the counterparty. The Group takes
into account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collateral through its
determination of the net credit exposures and the effective LGD.
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEREEK £ % B B B 4H 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeES ()

C) EEERSETIR Y (C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation (continued)
B R ERER (&)

A BB NI RN For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is incorporated into the
BRI RENGEE internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending on the nature of the guarantees and
g AYE (S8R collateral for calculating the risk exposures.

GERRI(F IS IR AT

B SEEEETE

KIER BRI SR

HY A JE b 2 8

o

AEEFRTHEERE The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk mitigation (recognised
ERTH (HEEAX collateral and guarantees for capital calculation) used by the Group are under a low
ST ERYEE TR A level.

SEER) AUEER
B G2 o PR T 555 R
S EERI (BRSSP -

HEREH F518 Up to the date of report, for capital calculation, except derivatives subject to valid
BEARE - BT HER bilateral netting agreements, the Group has not used any other on-balance sheet or
R R S E A off-balance sheet recognised netting for credit risk mitigation. The Group also has not
BT G4 » A used any recognised credit derivative contracts for credit risk mitigation.

B2 B o AT

frEEAERNEE

7E A E RSN TP
STEIEREERE R
FELE - RERME
[EREREE I EEDT
ETHAENEREE
JE\ R R T, -
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEREEK £ % B B B 4H 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeES ()

(D) AEBEFR L= (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems
HeHl

AEBECEILT — The Group has established a comprehensive control mechanism to ensure the
E5E = Y 1% ) % integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems including the processes for
> DIRECREEE 24 using the risk components in the day-to-day business to assess credit risk.
(BIETE H S
AR (5 L Bk 4H
B oy PAEY A (5 6
fa) AyTEREME: - AERE
A —E M

EEEHZES All of IRB risk models are approved by the Credit and Loans Management Committee
HH T AR and Risk Management Committee of the Board.

EHZAGHEMR

NS A AR AT

BA Y JE b a2

Al o
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NEREEK £ % B B B 4H 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

BRERSy (48
(D) AEBEFER L= (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
B (D
By {5 B BE AR &S R In order to achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Group has

ET AT - AEREAVE
& AREEEITLT
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[5 B fir B RF 4R it
T2FF - HIR PR
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FEHMANBAARF
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Bt bR E
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2V EFEETE
o AEEBAREE
BHEAMELT R
BEAEEEERR
BOR » ZHILAHETET
Sk o

established a rating approval process which is independent from the sales and
marketing units. Since internal rating is one of the key inputs to credit decision
making, a control mechanism is put in place to ensure the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of the rating assignment. For the wholesale (corporate and bank) credit
portfolio, internal ratings are normally approved by credit officers who are functionally
separated from the sales and marketing units. In some cases where the transactions
are in small amount and of low credit risk, the credit ratings can be assigned and
approved by the sales and marketing units, subject to the periodic post-approval
review of ratings by Risk Management units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail portfolio are highly
automated. As an integral part of the daily credit assessment process, the accuracy
and completeness of data input for automatic rating assignment are verified by units
independent from business development function.

The obligor rating is reviewed at least annually as required by the Group’s credit risk
policy. When credit events occur to the obligor, rating review is triggered promptly in
accordance with the Group’s credit risk policy.

173



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 NP LG 5 Em s 4H 13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
BeESy (8D

(D) AP RS

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
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Rating override is designed to allow credit analyst to include any other relevant credit
information that has not yet been captured by rating models. For reasons of
conservatism and prudential considerations, overrides are unlimited in terms of
downgrades but more restricted for upgrades. All upgrades will be limited to a
maximum of two sub-grades supported by a very narrowly pre-defined list of
appropriate reasons. All overrides need to be signed off by a higher level of credit
approval authority. The internal rating policy sets a trigger point of 10% overrides on
rating cases. The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed by BOCHK as
part of performance review on IRB rating models.

The performance of internal rating system is put under ongoing periodic monitoring.
The Management periodically reviews the performance and predictive ability of the
internal rating system. The effectiveness of the internal rating system and processes
are reviewed by independent control functions. The model maintenance unit conducts
assessment on the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating systems
while the validation unit performs comprehensive review of the internal rating system.
Internal audit reviews the internal rating system and the operations of the related
credit risk control units. The results of the review are reported to the Board and the
Management regularly.
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13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.1 AEEPR AR R ERERE
BRERSY (8D

(D) AEREFERF LR HEH

(E

~

B (8D

rh R AL R
o 8 2 s 1 R %
HAFISFRERAL » E
HF L E MR E &
i ARl
5 o EREAHIE T
158 28 By S A A DL i
PRET 4] Za 90 A % 51
BEJT ~ AEMEMAIRRE
MHFEEE RERH
FOR o AIERIAYRIL
RE J1 KR T 2
HTERR AR Al
GRLE AT AR

e

TR TTA

AR A A
B &R 2 5
THan S BRI
1.15 T < il 5 2 UK
(=N

13.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

A model validation team of BOCHK which is independent from the model
development unit and rating assignment units, conducts periodic model validations
using both qualitative and quantitative analysis. Model acceptance standards are
established by BOCHK to ensure the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of
the rating systems meet regulatory and management requirements. Review of a
rating model will be triggered if the performance of the model deteriorates materially
against pre-determined tolerance limit.

(E) Approach for determining provisions
The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

For details, please refer to Note 1.15 “Impairment of financial assets” to the Financial
statements.
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13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
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13.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

The tables below show the Group’s exposures other than securitisation exposures
(including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and off-balance sheet exposures) by
each IRB calculation approach.

B3

R
[EVN&5
TS

EERIER
T

==

HA(EANZE

2015
BESE ZERE
ERREAER BARTEIE FReRERE e R
FPEEAE  Supervisory BREE MEREE
sHExE Slotting Retail Specific B RIS
FIRB Criteria IRB  Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT AT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Corporate 140,544,601 971,346 - - 141,515,947
Bank 98,056,051 - - - 98,056,051
Retail
Residential
mortgages to
individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies - - 13,506,028 - 13,506,028
Qualifying
revolving retail - - - - -
Other retail to
individuals - - 8,892,267 - 8,892,267
Small business
retail - - 1,890,509 - 1,890,509
Others - - - 12,405,053 12,405,053
238,600,652 971,346 24,288,804 12,405,053 276,265,855
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Corporate
Bank
Retail
Residential
mortgages to
individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies
Qualifying
revolving retail
Other retail to
individuals
Small business
retail
Others

13.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach (continued)

2014
BB ZTEAH

FEREAHS FHFEE STER AR Ry 2 g

FfeREAE Supervisory FHEE HEEEE
SRR Slotting Retail Specific 4 e g K
FIRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT T AT AT AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
137,531,530 1,543,915 - - 139,075,445
103,072,641 - - - 103,072,641
- - 11,742,017 - 11,742,017
- - 8,032,884 - 8,032,884
- - 2,160,707 - 2,160,707
- - - 10,188,547 10,188,547
240,604,171 1,543,915 21,935,608 10,188,547 274,272,241
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13.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB approach

The table below shows the total EAD of the Group’s exposures subject to supervisory
estimates under the use of IRB approach (including the specialised lending subject to

the supervisory slotting criteria approach).

2015 2014

AT AT

HK$'000 HK$’000

Corporate 141,515,947 139,075,445
Bank 98,056,051 103,072,641
Others 12,405,053 10,188,547
251,977,051 252,336,633

13.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used

(A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral

The table below shows the Group’s exposures under the use of FIRB approach
(after the effect of any on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting)
which are covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts required
under the Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing

transactions and derivative contracts.

2015 2014

AT AT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Corporate 26,047,617 29,599,424
Bank 6,931 3,254
26,054,548 29,602,678
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134 ZEERREETER 13.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used (continued)
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(B) ZeB AR AERYE (B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees

BRI

RIS EZ R

The table below shows the Group’s exposures (after the effect of any on-balance

(R17E (BEK) B sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are covered by recognised

RI) B 78 AR
"2 I IR ORI
EbgAEE (CE R contracts.
fAEEABEENNE
ERERINE AR
FTEUAIVREE) - L
R AR R A R

FRAER G R ETAET

HE% -

E(==1 Corporate
AT Bank
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guarantees after the application of haircuts required under the Banking (Capital)
Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions and derivative

2015 2014
AETIT e
HK$'000 HK$'000

29,319,782 29,330,207
6,031,455 7,893,668
35,351,237 37,223,875
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

13.5 NE LR ERAEET 13.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

13 R SRT R AR SR B

BTk

TRIRAERER 12 H The tables below detail the Group’s total EAD of corporate and bank exposures by
31 HJEB A FELE exposure-weighted average risk-weight and exposure-weighted average PD for each
i 7 2 o E ST 14 S B A obligor grade as at 31 December.

R e A 9 T ST 5
BOMERZ M3 FRIRAT
HURL R R ARE -

AT 1R 2E R SRIT 2 2 Y The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank exposures have taken
T [ K 3 B iR AR into account the effect of recognised collateral, recognised netting and recognised
Gt A TR - TSR guarantees. The Group did not have any recognised credit derivative contracts.

BT 5 R w8 T 9B IR AY
& AL SR
AEELTETREY -

(A) ¥EEERE CFa (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
ERAEBEE S EEA criteria approach)
FFREANEFIEE
)
2015
R A A

FHEEREE BRI
Exposure- FEBEER

BAE R AE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
WERE BT Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
AT % %

HK$'000
4Rl 1 Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
4Rl 2 Grade 2 295,203 18.44 0.03
4Rl 3 Grade 3 14,642,595 26.12 0.07
4 4 Grade 4 40,599,750 44.25 0.25
4Rl 5 Grade 5 71,848,082 76.92 1.08
46 Grade 6 12,487,428 105.51 4.95
4 7 Grade 7 82,519 194.25 28.48
4n 8 LY Grade 8/Default 589,024 95.56 100.00

140,544,601
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

THESERE (8

13.5 NE LR ERAEET 13.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

R FRTEERENE  (continued)
BeavAd (8

(A) eEEEAE (TR

ERAEE SRR (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
STEENEMEE criteria approach) (continued)
g) (8
2014
JE\ B AR A T
SR bR e JE\Fg R A A
Exposure- S EATR
AN K weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
AEBE S8 Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
P R % %
HK$'000
G Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
a1 2 Grade 2 308,114 23.37 0.04
4K 3 Grade 3 18,733,272 23.45 0.07
4R 4 Grade 4 34,181,018 40.24 0.24
S GiER) Grade 5 67,372,190 72.01 1.13
4K 6 Grade 6 15,926,506 121.46 5.18
R 7 Grade 7 67,764 171.14 20.40
4l 8, &Y Grade 8/Default 942,666 62.15 100.00
137,531,530
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. NERLak Ee#EETE A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THEERERE (&)

135 NEFFREERIAT
SR SRTT R AR AT

BeavAd (8

(B) dEEERAE (A

(continued)

13.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under

IRB approach

B RAETEE (B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
HEFHEEER) approach)
2015 2014
R A eI e
YRS S
Exposure- Exposure-
BB REARE weighted ARG AR weighted
Exposure average Exposure average
PPk ARA]  Supervisory Rating Grades at default risk-weight at default risk-weight
AT % ARTT %
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Strong 443,946 60.96 505,694 60.17
B Good 527,400 88.30 312,252 86.96
Sl Satisfactory 0.00 725,969 115.00
RIE Weak 0.00 - 0.00
EL Default 0.00 - 0.00
971,346 1,543,915
P M S BT The supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are

b e J\ b RE LT
PRI CERATSE (A
FRIT) 55 158 {5
TEMMEEE ©

determined in accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.

182



65 NCB #15F 4% 44

M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

THEERER (&)

135 WERFPREETRIAT
S SRIT B AR IEET R
Bearfh ()

(C) SRTRBRRE

B E S8

MEME S

Sl 1
Sl 2
Sl 3
Sl 4
Sl 5
Sl 6
Sl 7
Sl 8, LY

13.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

(continued)

(C) Bank exposures

2015
JE\RGAR HE IR

Y RREE [\ B AR s A
Exposure- EERARR
B AE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %

HK$'000
Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 2 14,541,766 22.47 0.04
Grade 3 48,456,743 28.35 0.06
Grade 4 31,425,420 55.79 0.23
Grade 5 3,632,122 73.09 0.79
Grade 6 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 7 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 8/Default - 0.00 0.00

98,056,051

2014
JoE B AR e

PR E JoE B AR S e
Exposure- S ELR
EL R RS weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %

HK$'000
Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 2 9,809,605 22.95 0.04
Grade 3 49,085,042 31.00 0.07
Grade 4 38,122,386 58.62 0.24
Grade 5 6,055,608 75.57 0.75
Grade 6 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 7 - 0.00 0.00
Grade 8/Default - 0.00 0.00
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

THEERER (&)

13.6 PUERGPAREESTRIAT
BERBRENRRRTAh

TEYRA 12 A 31 Hi%
TEHER E L A E
R FR R -

FEEEEEK

REEL%
>1%
B

BEREREE

5% %10%
>10%
#Y

HAEANBE

REE2%
>2%
=29

13.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach

The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis by expected loss
percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December.

Residential mortgages

2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Up to 1% 13,474,453 11,697,637
>1% 29,401 36,464
Default 2,174 7,916
13,506,028 11,742,017
Qualifying revolving retail
2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Up to 10% - -
>10% - -
Default - -
Other retail to individuals
2015 2014
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Up to 2% 8,665,952 7,919,599
>2% 220,943 110,794
Default 5,372 2,491
8,892,267 8,032,884
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THESER (&)

13.6 NEREREREAEET 13.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach (continued)

BERAEN RS
(€:-D)

BE/NMdZE Small business retail
2015 2014
BT BEEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
% E1% Up to 1% 1,823,740 2,078,789
>1% >1% 23,344 46,372
LY Default 43,425 35,546
1,890,509 2,160,707

13.7 BEEELEEEENS 13.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates

r

The table below shows the actual losses broken down by class of risk exposure, which
T E G AR R represent the net charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
HIREL - HIZEE RS allowances) made by each class of exposures under the internal ratings-based
FEN NIRRT B approach for the year.

{18 R AR HE S T 4
Hy Rt (RLREmEs R

AEHE AR ) -

2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1 Corporate 761,668 811,457
T Bank - -

B R ZE 7N BT S Residential mortgages to individuals and
I=%4 property-holding shell companies - 3,653
GEBIEREE Qualifying revolving retail - B}
HAEAZE Other retail to individuals 829 5,750
TR/ Small business retail 16,365 4,056
778,862 824,916
12 5 5 S RORE S (A5 Y Decrease in the loan impairment charge of corporate exposures was mainly due to the

TV FEEN 2015 £ decrease in the amount of new classified or impaired loans in 2015.
B S EORE SR
R
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M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THESER (&)

13.7 EEREEEREEERNST 13.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

NG D)
R EEEREE T The table below shows the expected loss broken down by class of risk exposure, which
TEHATESL: - THEAIEC B3 is the estimated loss likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligors
= IR e N in respect of the exposure over a one-year period.
—FHIN AT RER LY 5 15
HIfEETHESL -
2014412 B 31 H 2013412 H 31 H
fiEEEE=PS THIHER
Expected loss Expected loss
at 31 December at 31 December
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1 Corporate 1,222,809 1,046,174
$R1T Bank 76,415 64,038
PN St NI LRt e ] Residential mortgages to individuals and
j=%/¢ property-holding shell companies 5,384 6,249
EERIEREE Qualifying revolving retail - -
HA(E AN EE Other retail to individuals 41,431 25,832
TN Small business retail 20,068 19,598
1,366,107 1,161,891
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THESER (&)

13.7 HEHIRK R AERERS
¥ (8D

13.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

TRELSHEGEREIEY The tables below set out the actual default rate compared against the estimated PD of

AR fif TR LY R AV B
tt -

the respective portfolio.

2015 4Ef 2014412 A31H

Actual default Estimated PD

rate during at 31 December

2015 2014

% %

1 Corporate 1.68 1.90

RIT Bank - 0.25
B R ZE7% N EE TS Residential mortgages to individuals and

=% property-holding shell companies 0.02 0.52

GERIEREE Qualifying revolving retail - B

HAEANZE Other retail to individuals 0.17 0.77

TN\ Small business retail 1.14 1.31

2014 14 2013412 H 31 H

EHIENE RN RS

Actual default Estimated PD

rate during at 31 December

2014 2013

% %

1 Corporate 1.12 2.01

RIT Bank - 0.26
B8N R 22738 N B 1418 Residential mortgages to individuals and

=% property-holding shell companies 0.04 0.57

BEREREE Qualifying revolving retail - B}

HAE AN EE Other retail to individuals 0.10 0.79

TE/NPpFE Small business retail 0.96 1.42
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

13. KN EREEeER EL#ESTH A 13. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
THESER (&)

13.7 EFHRL R AEEERNS

13.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

¥ (@D

FAHHBR A E BRI
R EETRENET
R DI a R E A
SEREEHAERD - AR
FPEEREAHELER - PERRA]
EZRNH TR% ) E
FHVEAZ - FAHHER
FEEZERE A ERNE
B N ELIHBAE AR
&Ko MEE RE A A ]
{E R AR AR o B
Il B U AR AR B Y L
PR ERERRA ¢ TR
RN EE ARt
A A (R A SRR e
(AR R0 A% 8 -

B BRI R R
BORIEBABE (Ht3%
JE\f ) SR PR E (&
FERERARYE ) A FEY
R AL —(E LR B IR
REPPHRLRIIMGE -
AEHERFER A At —F A
FYTHHTE LM -

I - H R [ 45
B PEKCP ET 8
B AR (TRERERS )
HIEEGREE G
H 5 B RE A

o

BRERRIRIE RN
ES Iy e SRS TS

It should be noted that expected loss and actual loss are measured and calculated using
different methodologies compliant with relevant regulatory and accounting standards,
which therefore may not be directly comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the
fundamental differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Accord
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of the obligor by
taking into account the time value of money and including the direct and indirect costs
associated with the recoveries on the credit exposures during the workout process,
while actual loss is the net charge of individually assessed impairment allowances and
write-offs made during the year in accordance with the accounting standards.

The actual default rate is measured by using the number of obligors (for wholesale
exposures) or number of accounts (for retail exposures) defaulted whereas the estimated
PD is an estimate of the long run average default rate over an economic cycle and is the
estimated one-year forward-looking PD from the date of rating assignment.

Hence, actual default rate in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ from the
estimated PD which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as economies move above or
below the cyclical norms.

The estimated PD is more conservative than the actual default rate for all asset classes.

188



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M HwFEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

14. &% ({SEFEgE) §f& 14. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
AT EERE

14.1 SNER(EEEE %S 14.1 Use of ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI")
(ECANZTEREIER
NEHERHEE (S The Group adopts STC approach based on external credit rating to determine the risk
) sHEVEWDMNTE A weight of the small residual credit exposures that was approved by the HKMA to be
SR B TEESESE exempted from FIRB approach and the following asset classes of exposures:

JRy AL R T A (o
NERSPAR RS BRI
Hi 35 B AR HE DR DL
TERE S AR yEr

(EEEREE

- BEER - Sovereign

- NEEAL - Public sector entity

- ZIEREIRIT - Multilateral development bank

REEE (BR1TFE (BR) The Group performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in banking book in
A 58 4 #Ro IR E RS accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. The ECAIs recognised by the
FEREAE > [N E5F Group include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

AR T NaFaR B TESR
TTHRAY R AYE - AR
SO ] AL (S ST A AR
AL R - A

.
14.2 (FEERERE 14.2 Credit risk mitigation

EA R (S e E ) For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of recognised collateral
STEENE SR E R include cash deposits, debt securities and equities for non-past due exposures. In
JE 2 AR AR PR Y E 2R addition, real estate collateral is also recognised for past due exposures. The treatment
AR R E AR A R S 1T of recognised collateral is compliant with the comprehensive approach for credit risk
K~ (B M o 1 mitigation as mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under STC
4N itz I E R is s approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation include the guarantees
B | F R AE A B AT R given by sovereigns, public sector entities, multilateral development banks, or banks and
tn o AEEEHPIETH mAY corporates with ECAI issuer ratings both exempted from FIRB approach for credit
BEHEAES GRTE% (BK) exposures, that have lower risk weights than the counterparty. Besides, the recognised
FRHDY theratetEiEEe netting for credit risk mitigation includes derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
JE\R R R TE Y oK - agreements.

B (EERR) stRE
STEERERRIEE A
KIF B AR R A EREH
e\ A R AL A S T (A
BOEE  ABEM %
BRI TREMER R
FHEERE IR R
SRR A HE fE Y 3R
T R EASMR S ERT
TR IT NSRS, - It
Hh o DARE AT RS
HERERAEEAEEN
PR RV OTE
THXRS -
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
14. &% ({EEHE) sf& 14. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

ETHEERR (8D
14.3 BReB s {LIEA R bR

SMEE (FERE) 55
ATHEERR&E

BEAEFNERAE On-balance sheet exposures

BER Sovereigns

NEEAL Public sector entities

IBETEIRT Multilateral development
banks

$RAT Banks

EeeaAl| Securities firms

1R Corporates

R Collective Investment
Scheme

HeIEE Cash items

BETE Regulatory retail

{EEIHEEK Residential mortgage loans

R SR At U Other exposures which are

K not past due
E A R e Past due exposures

HrEAMEFNEREYE  Total on-balance sheet
k) exposures

HErEaEFRINAEYE  Off-balance sheet exposures

FREE R & AL 5 AT Off-balance sheet exposures
£ TEEXYMTE other than securities
FEAERINRER financing transactions and

i derivative contracts
HEHRERL S RITA Securities financing
THEAEY transactions and derivative
contracts

GEEAERIMNEEIE  Total off-balance sheet
k) exposures

JEE A BERERAIE  Total non-securitisation

k) exposures
1,250%]E\[mf#EERYE  Exposures that are risk-weighted
il at 1,250%

14.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

2015
EEEE REHERS SREER
ERReE R IR SR HEESy  RERS
Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount Total Total
R exposures exposures
SHEE covered by covered by
Total TEERAR TRESER TEEPAR ArEsP4:  recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BT BT BETIT  B¥TT BETOT BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
34,997,144 35,070,486 - 571,753 - - -
1,648,325 1,578,161 - 137,507 - - 73,342
1,500,101 1,500,101 - - - - -
159,679 159,679 - 32,873 - - -
7,498,495 - 7,480,088 - 7,480,088 18,407 -
472,067 - 472,067 - 472,067 - -
442 - 442 - - - -
2,117,320 - 2,036,780 - 1,527,585 80,540 -
12,166,871 - 12,163,694 - 6,081,847 - 3,177
396,777 - 278,248 - 287,398 118,529 -
84,207 - 84,207 - 109,117 34,387 -
61,041,428 38,308,427 22,515,526 742,133 15,958,102 251,863 76,519
472,850 99,480 373,370 19,896 339,192 - 3,669
16,506 - 16,506 - 13,371 - -
489,356 99,480 389,876 19,896 352,563 - 3,669
61,530,784 38,407,907 22,905,402 762,029 16,310,665 251,863 80,188
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M HENE: (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
14. =¥ ({E&EkE) & 14. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

ETHERERE (&)

14.3 BEAE{ER R G RE 14.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised

IMEE (EERE) 58
ATHERREAE (8

ErEaEFNEREIE On-balance sheet exposures

BT Sovereigns

AL Public sector entities

BT Multilateral development

banks

SRAT Banks

H2AE Securities firms

5 Corporates

EREE R Collective Investment

Scheme

BB E Cash items

BEEE Regulatory retail

(B3 o)~V /Y Residential mortgage loans

I A ELA Other exposures which are
HEAE not past due

A b R AE Past due exposures

EEAERNEREE Total on-balance sheet
k) exposures

BEAEFIMNEEAIE  Off-balance sheet exposures
FREEHMER S T Off-balance sheet exposures

4 TEHALYNTE other than securities
EEAEFIMNE & financing transactions and
# derivative contracts
FEARNE AL B AT Securities financing
THEE&Y transactions and derivative
contracts

EEAEFIMNEEIE  Total off-balance sheet
YEEE exposures

JEE S LIERE A  Total non-securitisation
4a7A exposures

1,250% @& HEERYE ~ Exposures that are risk-weighted
IR IELEEH at 1,250%

.

*

IS SRR
& (TR (EA)
S STEITER R,
et -

(credit risk) approach (continued)

2014
FEmE ARG TR
RS JE g IR R AR ATy HEEY
Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount Total Total
JE i K exposures  exposures
“aEg covered by covered by
Total R RIEREAR TESTAR AJESF4R  recognised  recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BT BETIT BETT BETT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
32,454,627 32,481,294 - 136,437 - - -
419,432 395,107 - 27,978 - - 26,667
330,293 330,293 - - - - -
6,267,904 161,088 6,106,816 33,183 1,258,144 - -
8,490,939 - 8,428,030 - 8,428,030 62,909 -
264 - 264 - - - -
2,381,688 - 2,334,894 - 1,751,171 46,794 -
11,197,935 - 11,195,593 - 5,597,797 - 2,342
602,837 - 444,236 - 561,191 158,601 -
67,216 - 67,216 - 94,353 12,943 -
62,213,135 33,367,782 28,577,049 197,598 17,690,686 281,247 29,009
366,704 25,570 341,134 5,114 314,349 - 4,759
9,781 - 9,781 - 7,714 - -
376,485 25,570 350,915 5,114 322,063 - 4,759
62,589,620 33,393,352 28,927,964 202,712 18,012,749 281,247 33,768
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
15. X EHFEEEKEME 15. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

AR

REEEZ SR RTIRT
RENTET RGN MEZRM
BER 2R 5 T EERE
A JE o LA > BT S R
FiFaE 2 Fral—2 - AR E i
—REEFEMEFLELS
P Z EEHEEDIERINTL
THERGERRE AR 5
SR DIERIE R SR K
SRATHR T BN AL 2 F B Y
SR - A SRR AR TR
B A e PR AT R\ B A HE T 0
B N T 5 Bl AR e K
¥E - JE i B B B A DA R
b ] L A A A B9 D e
HFEM -

2 g 5 G R AR IEN (S
B EEBE B A RIEE
BEEABETHRE - AT &
£ B R BT s A E T A
sHEERE S EEEE - A
BT BB AR 9 VB AT B K
¥ - HHRAZ 5 TR R R E
R RN B A B
sHEE R ((EERER) 5t
BUEETE - 4N AGEEIERA
FEEEE G ERE L 5TE
AR AE 5 (5 B AL (E T %

REEE /EFMERLS T
Z A S R R e B Y
0 AT AR Al SARATHIR -

AREFEIRE A 5 T VLY
TR e A R I 1 58 T 4%A5
B EBOR - 5 A S B E
A -HEERERADE
B BRI R e A R

FEEEORET R E IR EAE
i -

FESH F S (ST ELY
R L 2 2 T T Y (5
6 Ja B 7 S 2 I [ A (R Y JL
b ) BYEBRELEG SR o JRHI L
7N O R AT A E B8 1]
PSS o o A 7E B M e i
a8 JBE 7 AR Y T AE — %
FE 1A RBRAT A S T o

The Group’s counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions both in trading and banking book is subject to the same risk management
framework as mentioned in Note 2 to the Financial statements. The Group establishes credit
limit of counterparties through formal credit approval procedures to control the pre-settlement
credit risk arising from derivative transactions and settlement limit to control the settlement
risk arising from foreign exchange-related transactions for counterparties in both the trading
book and banking book. The Group monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the
market by using the current exposure and the potential exposure value of the transactions.
Exceptions or excesses are timely and closely identified and monitored by risk management
units.

Credit equivalent amount and capital charge for the relevant counterparty credit exposures
are determined following the regulatory capital requirements. Currently, the Group has
adopted the Current Exposure Method to measure the relevant credit equivalent amount,
which comprises current exposures and potential future exposures. The relevant counterparty
default risk capital charge is calculated under the FIRB/STC (credit risk) approach. In
addition, the Group has adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”") method to
calculate the relevant counterparty CVA capital charge.

The Group establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt securities being
pledged as collateral for securities financing transactions.

The Group formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the PD of
counterparties and the period of overdue. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, impairment allowance will be provided according to HKFRS and
regulatory requirements.

In controlling and monitoring of wrong-way risk (risk of existence of positive correlation
between the PD of a counterparty and credit exposures driven by mark-to-market value of the
underlying transactions), specific wrong-way risk transactions are generally not allowed and
monitoring measures have been formulated for those counterparties identified by stress
testing that would be exposed to potential general wrong-way risk.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
15. X EHFESEEEMHE 15. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

BERE (8

15.1 PERRFERERESEIAT

RS T EERRRE

TN AA G BRI BT
e\ I 7 T R A T
ETEFME S K14
TAALFTEEARER
& - A HIGH A RS A i
PR R R R

15.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal ratings-based approach

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from securities financing transactions and derivative contracts calculated using the
Current Exposure Method. There is no effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on
these exposures.

HIEEAFE

[ EERVE 3R e
finsA s Bt RAE N
A
&

Tk R A

-
- HA

CRA N SR F s R
A B RAEN
Z BN IR
BiEieii g il e

VSt s Vil v
A TR\ B B AR
kbt
AT

VS s s Vil v
e\ e A
13
AT

EREEIRIERIEE A (E
BT THEXNH
FIEH

2015 2014
Securities TETEAY Securities IHETEEY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross total positive fair
value 373,984 86,822
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements 2,384,183 686,116 2,763,929 418,634
Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities (339,774) - - -
- Others (472,002) - (2,061,803) -
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral 1,572,407 686,116 702,126 418,634
Default risk exposures by
counterparty type
Corporate - 70,209 - 102,812
Bank 2,384,183 615,907 2,763,929 315,822
2,384,183 686,116 2,763,929 418,634
Risk-weighted amounts
by counterparty type
Corporate - 63,226 - 111,619
Bank 683,839 184,081 291,016 101,312
683,839 247,307 291,016 212,931

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
15. X EHFESEEEMHE 15. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

BERE (8

152 & (FERR) &

15.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

ATHXZHFERR
BRI

T M AL A £ [ R B
7 L B A Y 7 A st R
HIETUTETREY
FrEE A A s R - A H
R RS E O A

Flmai e -

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from derivative contracts calculated using the Current Exposure Method. There is no
effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on these exposures.

SIEBAPE
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R R B
#

T+ wE RS

- {5
- HAif

[ EERVE 3R e
nsA s Bt RAE N
IR TGS
AR bR

2015 2014
BERER S FEIFRIE S
Securities MTETEEY Securities T HEEY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
AT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross total positive fair
value 322,282 352,250
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements - 16,506 - 9,781
Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities - - - -
- Others - - - -
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral - 16,506 - 9,781
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

15. X EHFESEEEMHE 15. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

RAE (&)
15.2 @& (EERE) & 15.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach
AETHXSGHFEER (continued)
ReiE (4)
2015 2014
BRRER S O HFRIETE S
Securities ETEAY Securities THETEEY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

LISZ By TRy i
L BRI R SR HE

Default risk exposures by
counterparty type

BERER Sovereigns - B _
INEEEAL Public sector entities - - .
3 Corporates 3,948 - 1,488
BETE Regulatory retail 12,542 - 8,265
A A LAt Other exposures which
e are not past due 16 - 28
pizn vl Past due exposures - B _
16,506 - 9,781
DA G TR 8> Risk-weighted amounts
JE\F AR SR by counterparty type
BIER Sovereigns - - _
AR EAL Public sector entities - - _
iine Corporates 3,948 . 1,488
BETE Regulatory retail 9,407 - 6,198
B AR Other exposures which
S are not past due 16 - 28
iR AR YE Past due exposures - - ;
13,371 - 7,714

Rt EERENRE (S
BT RE4IIE

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

16. BERHb

AREENER—RICEHRE - °
20154E 12 H 31 H i i & A 55
Zb (20144 @ 4%) -

17. WBREREAREXR

fERtE (gl ) stEET
SNEREFRRE OFE)
Fl Ry
- FRREI LB R R
o R 7
e e R A

FEN B RIET
4N B FIZR 0 — b i

R A AR

16. Assets securitisation

17. Capital charge for market risk

Under the standardised (market risk) approach
Foreign exchange exposures (net)
Interest rate exposures
- Non-securitisation exposure
Commodity exposures
Equity exposures

Under the internal models approach
General foreign exchange and interest rate exposures

Capital charge for market risk

196

There was no assets securitisation for which the Group is an investing institution at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

48,993 45,648
48,993 45,648
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

17. 75 58 E kg & A ZE R 17. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

(&

FofFer (2011 SE8RFT3R ()

(fEET) AR - s b B
AAREOR RO R 2 B
EEAZK - TRIILALEHE
DI EREAET EAs T R — el
SRR A A A
R\ (e R 2 BRI (L

Market risk regulatory capital charge is calculated under the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)

Rules 2011 to incorporate capital charge for stressed VAR. The following table sets out the

IMM VAR and stressed VAR® for the general market risk exposure calculated under the IMM

approach of the Group.

£ s A
w12 H  mEEE @ SEBE  CEERE
31 H Minimum Maximum  Average
Ay At 31 for the for the for the
Year | December year year year
BT BT BETIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GINGEE R R B 2 PSR IMM VAR for foreign exchange
sFEEERE and interest rate risk 2015 2,657 1,686 4,080 2,613
2014 1,868 1,868 4,120 3,064
AN ARG T R A IMM VAR for foreign exchange
el N risk 2015 2,644 1,299 4,355 2,608
2014 1,597 1,597 4,156 3,094
FIZRE s~ N E A IMM VAR for interest rate risk
el N 2015 370 89 810 353
2014 765 652 2,554 1,956
SN R R 2R i\ 2 <7 B e Stressed VAR for foreign exchange
= and interest rate risk 2015 15,020 4,740 32,445 16,227
2014 8,825 7,683 33,097 16,191
NP R\ = 2 IR J e (L Stressed VAR for foreign exchange
risk 2015 7,101 1,924 8,600 6,734
2014 1,957 1,957 8,098 7,193
T2 > <7 JBR E\ s B Stressed VAR for interest rate risk 2015 11,201 1,897 27,852 11,653
2014 8,273 3,532 31,258 14,119

[

1. iR B E AR N B
ST RRUA R b (8 R =2 R e e fEL A
T 99% E{Z/KV R 10 Kff
FWAGTR - Z BRI (E R 5L
g (E SRR T - RIS
EIH & 12 B 3 B
RS ARG -

Note:

1. IMM VAR and stressed VAR measures used for market risk regulatory capital purposes are calculated to a

99% confidence level and use a 10-day holding period. The stressed VAR uses the same methodology as

the VAR model and is generated with inputs calibrated to the historical market data from a continuous

12-month period of significant financial stress relevant to the Group’s portfolio.
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MEE =ML (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

17. W iE B & & A B Kk 17. Capital charge for market risk (continued)
(&)

TREFRNSBAEESL TR The graphs below show the regulatory back-testing result of the Group’s market risk under
AEE TS EEVEZE RN IMM approach.

REES ©
20154E4ER Ol REHIES
Daily Back-testing in 2015
AT — A — 0

HED 000 Actual Revenues VaR

20144E4E K [l ETHIES
Daily Back-testing in 2014
HBETT — A —
HKD '000 Actual Revenues VaR

2015 4 A (o] BEHI = 45 B B There was 1 actual loss exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2015 as shown in the back-testing
R REEAE—-REBZSE results (2014: Nil).

I s JE g (E Y 5 0 (2014

o) e
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
18. BREEREARER

18. Capital charge for operational risk

PRIEE R EAEK

AR (GETHRFR
W) SRR
o -

19. SRTTHRAY A FE B B K

&

FA HA AR TR AR
JEHUZ S R A AR R A
i o Rl A R SR VB T F
AR H AR (R4S
BAEE ) THEFAEIRAER L
FRIANR - BEFERTA
HIRE e (CF BfEEE e
|~ GEASEE A EAR
B G AT AL SR - S
MWEEARENN SR%E
FIR

AEEEIER BRI A A S e
Fff3E 1.9(4)~1.12-1.13 f11.15
THE 2z St B R At (B 7740
HFRATRR BRI B & = LLS Y
P e S\ B s » LA (2
— BRI 7 R b
3.1 T DA EEEH =/ &R T
H o 35 AR I A B
W& > W5 BT
RleE AT~ GERESE
NE] IR R SRR A
B st BERE AR -

SRR R R HE A R 2 W g B
FEo Rt T

HEELNE TR

N AETIE R e G i i S
HIE

2015 2014

AT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Capital charge for operational risk 980,405 900,408

The Group uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its operational risk
capital charge.

19. Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the underlying
intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The classifications for equity holdings
taken for relationship and strategic purposes will be separated from those taken for other
purposes (including capital appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to
be held on a continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in associates, joint
venture or subsidiaries, are classified as available-for-sale securities and are reported in the
balance sheet as “Financial investments”.

For equity exposures in banking book other than subsidiaries, the Group applies the same
accounting treatment and valuation methodologies as detailed in the Notes 1.9(4), 1.12, 2.13
and 1.15 to the Financial statements, further details on their valuation are outlined in Note
3.1 “Financial instruments measured at fair value” to the Financial statements. If additional
investment is made subsequently such that an investee becomes an associate, joint venture
or subsidiary, then the investment is reclassified in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2015 2014

EWTIT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Realised gains from sales 71,892 -
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in reserves

but not through income statement 4,363 64,576
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